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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

X ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the calendar year endBécember 31, 2013

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-20008

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Glrart

Delaware 742415696
(State or other jurisdiction « (I.LR.S. Employe
incorporation or organizatioi Identification No.)

110 Wild Basin Road, Suite 100
Austin, Texas 78746
(Address of Principal Executive Office (Zip Code)

(512) 4372700

(Registrar’s Telephone Number, including Area Co

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:
None

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:
Common Stock, $0.01 par value

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0%é#turities Act. YeHl No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 o) %f the Act. Yedd No[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @ tiled all reports required to be filed by Secti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 (“Exchange Act"Huring the preceding 12 months (or for such shquégiod that the registrant was required to filehsteports), ar
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsife past 90 days. YexI NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsnitted electronically and posted on its corpol&fieb site, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRule 405 of Regulation $(§232.405 of this chapter) during the precediggrbnths (c
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Yes NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélings pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulationKS(§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contai
herein, and will not be contained, to the besthaf tegistrans knowledge, in definitive proxy or information t&ments incorporated
reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amerent to this Form 10-KXI

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axcelerated filer, or a smaller repor!
company, as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange A

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated fileEd Non-accelerated filéd Smaller reporting compay



Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act). YesO No[X]

The aggregate market value of the 5,924,551 shafrebe registrant's Common Stock held by raffiiates on June 30, 2013 v
approximately $25,802,140. For purposes of thismaation all officers, directors and 5% benefigalners of the registrant are deemed t
affiliates. Such determination should not be deeareddmission that such officers, directors andfieial owners are, in fact, affiliates of -

registrant.
At March 24, 2014, there were 5,979,426 sharebefégistrant's Common Stock, $.01 par value, sl outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Staent relating to its 2014 AnnuBleeting of Shareholders are incorporated by refarentc
Part Il of this Annual Report on Form ¥-where indicated. Such Proxy Statement, or an @memnt to this report containing the Ite
comprising Part I, will be filed with the U.S. 8arities and Exchange Commission within 120 daysrahe end of the fiscal year to wh
this report relates.
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STOCK SPLIT

On April 30, 2012, we completed a 3-fdrstock split. We have adjusted all prior peripdssented to reflect the impact of this s
split, including the impact on basic and dilutedgited-average shares and shares issued and alirtgtan

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

Asure Software, Inc., a Delaware corporation, avider of cloud-based software-as-a-service (Batime & labor manageme
and workspace management solutions that enableaiawpof all sizes and complexities to operate neffieiently and proactively mana
costs associated with their most expensive agseatisestate, labor and technology.

Asure serves approximately 5,000 clients worldwrdaging from global Fortune 500 clients to smalll anidsized businesses. \
focus on offering solutions to organizations in fimancial services, manufacturing, nprofit, healthcare, government organizations arail
services industries. Our clients include Merck &@wl, Inc., Pfizer, Inc., Salesforce.com, Inc., Dulweiversity, Cornell University, Irc
Mountain, State Street, and Baker & McKenzie.

We currently offer two main product lines, Asure&p®' and AsureForce®Our AsureSpace™ workplace management solt
enable organizations to manage their office enwvirvemts and optimize real estate utilization. Ouur&Force®time and labor managem:
solutions help organizations optimize labor anatad@ministration costs and activities.

Labor administration, technology and real estatstaypically represent an organizati®rthree largest expenditures, yet n
companies remain unaware of how they use resoimcégese areas. Asugsolutions enable business leaders to approask treas as
strategic opportunity to drive efficiencies andlabbration and control costs by providing accesdata that can help to facilitate better
estate and labor decisions guided by meaningfulioset

Asure’s solutions also help businesses to prepare thlwkplace for the workforce of the future. Employese increasingly mobi
transient and connected to technology 24x7 viar i mobile devices. The “employee backpaclkd eubicle, desktop PC and traditic
phone land line 4s not always necessary and in many companiescisnbi@g obsolete. As a result, the workplace isngihag and evolving
with “hotel” (i.e., shared) cubicle spaces and mgpaces for social connections and collaboratimurd&'s cloudsased solutions help cont
costs and optimize productivity in a highly mobigographically disparate and technically wiredkvemvironment.

We were incorporated in 1985 and our principal axge offices are located at 110 Wild Basin Roadites100, Austin, Tex:
78746. Our telephone number is (512) 2300 and our website is www.asuresoftware.comorinéition on our website is not part of
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Asure makes available free of charge, on or thratgyivebsite, our annual report on Form 10-K, ouarterly reports on Form 1Q-
and our current reports on FormkK8-and amendments to those reports filed or fuedspursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exgk
Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after wetreldcally file these materials or furnish thenthie Securities and Exchange Commission.




Table of Content

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

In September 2013, we entered into a third amentremour Senior Note Payable. Under this amendmest borrowed &
additional $2.5 million in September 2013 and aditi@hal $1.5 million in December 2013. We used tie¢ proceeds to pay the two Leg
Acquisition Notes totaling $1.7 million, as well #ee two related party 15% Notes totaling $800,0ltese loans were all due in Octc
2014. Under the latest amendment, we also chargpgairc financial covenants. See Note 6 in the a@asying financial statements for m
information.

In October 2013, we paid in full, less a 5% disddion early payment, the note entered into in coofion with the purchase of t
assets of ADITime, LLC (“ADI").In conjunction with the acquisition of the assetsA®I in October 2011, we issued a $1.1 million &
payable to the seller. This note bore interesharaual rate of 0.16%, was due October 2014 amsdgwaranteed by us. We made a prin
payment of $245,000 in July 2012 and a final paym@&n$811,000 in October 2013 in full payment ofstmote. See Note 6 in t
accompanying financial statements for more inforomat

In March 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreemeithh Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as austrative agent, and t
lenders that are party thereto.

The Credit Agreement provides for a term loan ie #mount of $15.0 million. The term loan will maun March 2019. Tt
outstanding principal amount of the term loan iggide follows:

$187,500 on June 30, 2014 and the last day of festdl quarter thereafter up to March 31, 2C
$281,250 on June 30, 2016 and the last day of el quarter thereafter up to March 31, 2017;
$375,000 on June 30, 2017 and the last day of feswai quarter thereafte

In March 2014, we used the proceeds of the term fodinance the repayment of all amounts outstamdinder our loan agreem
with Deerpath Funding, LP (“Deerpathénd the payment of certain fees, cost and expewsaed to the Credit Agreement. The Deer
loan bore interest at a floating annual rate etualBOR plus 8.0%, subject to a LIBOR floor of %50r a minimum of 11.5%. We expec
incur, in the first quarter of 2014, a otime charge of approximately $1.4 million in contiec with the refinancing, of which approximat
$700,000 is non-cash deferred financing costs.

The Credit Agreement also provides for a revohMmen commitment in the aggregate amount of up t6 #8llion. The outstandir
principal amount of the revolving loan is due araygble in March, 2019. Additionally, the Credit &gment provides for a $10.0 milli
uncommitted incremental term loan facility to suggeermitted acquisitions.

The term loan and revolving loan will bear intey@gtour option, at (i) the greater of 1% or LIBQ#Rys an applicable margin or (i
base rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) aluapplicable margin. We have elected to use therlrate plus the applicable mar¢
which is 5% for the first six months. Interest i@ypble monthly and the margin varies based upornlem@rage ratio. See table below
applicable margin rates.

Total Leverage Ratio Base Rate Margin LIBOR Rate Margin
> 2.75:1.C 3.00% 4.00%
< 2.75:1.0 but > 2.25: 2.50% 3.50%
< 2.25:1 2.00% 3.00%

We may voluntarily prepay the principal amount tartsling under the revolving loan at any time withpanalty or premium. W
must pay a premium if we make a voluntary prepayméutstanding principal under the term loan dgrihe first two years following tl
closing date or if we are required to prepay ouitzg principal under the Credit Agreement withqeeds resulting from certain asset sal
debt incurrence. The premium is 1% or 0.5% of thiecipal amount being prepaid depending on whethemprepayment occurs on or be
the first anniversary of the closing date or subsed to the first anniversary date through the sécanniversary of the closing date
addition, we are required to repay outstandinggiped with 50% of excess cash flow, certain ovevaates, asset sale proceeds,
proceeds, and proceeds from judgments and setttemen

Under the Credit Agreement, we are required to taaira fixed charge coverage ratio of not less th&nto 1.0 beginning with t|
quarter ending June 30, 2014 and each calendateqilaereafter, and a leverage ratio of not grethien 3.5 to 1.0 beginning with the qua
ending June 30, 2014 with the levels stepping dihereafter.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmatinel negative covenants, including, among otharstaltions with respect
debt, liens, fundamental changes, sale of assefsapment of debt, investments, dividends, ands&retions with affiliates.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventstdudt, including, among others, payment defauits/enant defaults, judgme
defaults, bankruptcy and insolvency events, cradfaults to certain indebtedness, incorrect reptatiens or warranties, and change
control. In some cases, the defaults are subjemigtomary notice and grace period provisions.
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In connection with the Credit Agreement, we and wdmlly owned active subsidiaries entered into sak@oty and Securi
Agreement, in March 2014, with Wells Fargo Bank.denthe Guaranty and Security Agreement, we antl ehour wholly owned acti\
subsidiaries have guaranteed all obligations utiderCredit Agreement and granted a security intéresubstantially all of our and ¢
subsidiaries’ assets.

See Note 14 in the accompanying financial statesmeantmore information about the Credit Agreement &uaranty and Security
Agreement.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Asure’s solutions work together to help organizasidurn their three biggest expenses — labor, as@te and technologyinto ¢
strategic asset. We currently offer two main pradines, AsureSpace™ and AsureForce®.

The AsureSpace™ product line provides cl@iaded, SaaS software solutions to manage meetimy saheduling and to optimi
real estate utilization. Specific solutions inclubfeeting Room Manager, Resource Scheduler, Worlspaanager, SmartView, enel
management and hardware, including LCD panels ask& for making room reservations.

The AsureSpace™ Meeting Room Manager and ResowhedSler solutions automate the entire facility estfling proces
including room reservations, equipment requests] farders, meeting invitations and meeting envirenimeports. As a result, customers
more effectively manage scheduling processes au#t &ind understand space utilization. Our solutinolide a Microsoft Outlook adadr,
which provides additional scheduling tools that IGait does not provide. Customers can access satfkam a browser, Microsoft Outloc
mobile devices or dedicated LCD panels and kiogkwiged by Asure Software. Asure is a Microsoft G&ertified Partner, which v
believe independently confirms the quality of owrlsspace management solution. AsureSpace™ Smartiéiemcomprehensive workple
utilization analysis solution that empowers orgatians to make educated, cost-effective decisitasitaworkspace utilization. It uses state-
of-the-art occupancy and presence detection devwvidts in-depth, interactive reporting dashboards to trackasanre, and analyze sp
throughout entire facilities including individualonkspaces. AsureSpace™ LCD Panels and kiosks caurchased directly and they all
employees to view and reserve spaces on the fim freeting rooms and collaboration spaces. OvekalireSpace™ products enable
clients to increase utilization of corporate assetprove workplace productivity and control reatate costs.

The AsureForce@ime and labor management solutions help simplifg HR process and improve employee productivit
optimizing labor administration activities utiligicloudbased SaaS software platform solutions. Our swiataddress workforce schedul
PTO management and leave requests and payrolfaogemanagement. Our time collection devices trelbiometric identification, tirr
clocks and mobile time collection applications fge on tablets, PCs and mobile phones. They capubshased directly or througt
Hardware-as-a-Service (“HaaSgrangement. New to the Asure product family is rAs@GeoPunch™, a mobile time and attend
application that includes facial recognition andSGRinctionality to offer the flexibility, securitand validation needed to keep pace
today’s mobile workforce.

For both product lines, support and professionalises are other key elements of our software angdices business. As an exten:
of our perpetual software product offerings, Asoféers our customers maintenance and support adstthat provide ready acces:
qualified support staff, software patches and ughggao our software products. We also provid&ilation of and training on our produc
add-on software customization and other professmer@ices.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

We strive to quickly bring to market innovativepati-based solutions that work when, where and how veockfs are operatil
today. Asure’s strategy is to deliver the righthtealogy to its customer base in order to realifigiehcies in the workplace.

Our industry is characterized by continuing impnmeats in technology, resulting in the frequentddtrction of new products, sh
product life cycles, changes in customer needscamtinual improvement in product performance charstics. Asure strives to be cost-
effective and timely in enhancing our software #ations, developing new innovative software solousi that address the increasir
sophisticated and varied needs of an evolving rafgeistomers, and anticipating technological adearand evolving industry standards
practices.

Asure development teams — located in Traverse @iighigan, Warwick, Rhode Island and Austin, Texamre staffed with softwa
developers, quality assurance engineers and suppecialists who work closely with our customerd aales and marketing teams to b
products and services based on market requirenagtcustomer feedback. We develop our new prodondtservice roadmaps basec
inputs from customers, competitive comparisonsratel/ant technology innovations.
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Our research and development strategy is rootathovation and flexibility. The development teanhances the functionality of ¢
software and hardware products through new releasgsew feature developments, with a particulangoon cloudbased SaaS solutions
products for the mobile workforce. Asure will alsontinue to evaluate opportunities for developiegy software so that organizations 1
further streamline and automate the tasks assdcwittha administering their businesses. We seekirwltaneously allow organizations
improve their productivity while reducing the coatsociated with those business tasks.

We also actively search for potential product, Eenor business acquisitions that we believe wilnplement our existing a
planned product and service offerings. We cansstii@ that we will make future acquisitions or tvatcan successfully integrate acqu
assets or businesses profitably into Asure.

Despite our efforts, we also cannot assure thatwllecomplete our existing and future developmeffors or that our new ai
enhanced software products will adequately meetrélqeirements of the marketplace and achieve magetptance. Additionally, Ast
may experience difficulties that could delay orvanet the successful development or introductiomesf or enhanced software products
the case of acquiring new or complementary softyanelucts or technologies, we may not be abletegnate the acquisitions into our curi
product lines. Furthermore, despite extensivartgserrors may be found in new software productseteases after shipment, resulting
diversion of development resources, increased@®enasts, loss of revenue and/or delay in markeg@ance.

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

Asure sells its software products and serviceautiindoth a direct and channel (partner) model, wkitables us to sell our softw
solutions in an efficient, cogtffective manner. Prospective customers learn alsute through a variety of ways, including adsenij, wel
site searches, sales calls, public relations, dimggrketing and social media. When prospectivaotners show an interest in Asure,
connect them with a sales representative via ot site or phone to discuss their needs and theisotuthey are interested in and make
sale. We track our marketing and sales activitieSalesforce.com with immediate preview into dtitg, leads and pipeline opportun
Asure account management teams also work withiegistustomers to promote and sell additional sohdithat are relevant for e:
customer. In addition to this direct, inside satesdel, we supplement these efforts with our parpregrams described below. By work
with our partners, we expand the reach of our timmles force and gain access to key opportunitiesnajor market segmel
worldwide. Asure has two distinct levels of parthm our Partner Program: Reseller Partners arfierRé Partners.

Reseller Partners. Reseller Partners are companies that represegibbally, as well as before the Federal governmand ofte|
offer complementary products to either the workepaanagement product line or the workforce protinet Reseller Partners commit t
minimum level of business per year with us and ikeca channel discount for that commitment. OusdRer Partners outside the Uni
States include Novera in Australia which repres¢nésworkspace product line. We also have sewReskller Partners that represent
software in the Federal government space. Resedieour workforce product line in the United Stateclude Oasis Outsourcing, a le
provider of human resource outsourcing solutions.

Referral Partners . Referral Partners provide us with the name artiqular information about a prospective custoarat its neec
as a sales lead. If we accept the sales leadegister it for the referring Referral Partnerwié make a sale as a direct result of such a
we will pay the Referral Partner a sales lead rafdee. Currently, we have a number of Referrattirers, including PolyVision Cor
Steelcase and lenovative Solutions for the workspace managemesdyrt line and several smaller firms for our tiared attendance prod
line.

COMPETITION

We believe that the AsureSpace™ line of workspa@nmagement software solutions has a competitive rddgea in th
marketplace. We compete both in the breadth oftomprehensive platform of workspace schedulingwtilidation analytics as well as ¢
resources available for product development, clgemvices, and customer support. The primary ctitopeto AsureSpace™ include D¢
Evans & Associates, Inc., Emergingsoft CorporatidgilQuest Corporation and Condeco Ltd. (UK). bidaion to the features and availa
services, we believe the principal advantages offdSpace™ with respect to its competitors inclusleloudbased services model, exten:
product integration options and partner channelladte deployments, configurable interfaces, maddleess and price.

We believe that the AsureForcdiRe of workforce management of time and attendaufevare has a competitive advantage ir
marketplace in serving organizations seeking sigepibint-solutions as well as organizations desiring angiraed suite of solutions. |
competing tactically with poingelutions and strategically with an integratedeswit solutions, Asure can serve the needs of adbspeactrur
of companies.
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While Asure has the advantage of a flexible, e@syde, cloud-based, SadS8livered software model, affordability and pro
deployment methodology, we face several categofieesmpetitive challenges:

Vendors with face-to-face sales contdotthis highly relationship-based sales processdues with a fieldbased sales te:
who meet and consult with prospects have an adgantéey U.S. vendors who approach the market i itinner include ADP, Kront
PeopleSoft, Condeco and Steelcase. Asure doesawat & field-based approach to sales but focusesamhson hightouch marketin
campaigns and leveraging relationships with chapaghers to build relationships with prospects.

National payroll processors with loss-leader prottutarge brand and market share payroll processindasnsuch as AD
Inc.) offer equivalent point solutions at little op cost to prospects when in a competitive engagérecause these loss leader prou
become inconsequential next to their core busioffesings.

Single application vendor&/endors that offer similar poirgelutions such as room scheduling, office hotelimgnagemer
time and attendance, employee/managersszifice and paystub management can be perceivedtias meeting an immediate and spe
need.

Because the market for our products and serviceshigct to rapid technological change and thezaealatively low barriers to ent
in the workplace management software market, wémely encounter new entrants or competition froemdors in some or all aspects of
two product lines. Competition from these potentigrket entrants may take many forms. Some of ompetitors, both current and futt
may have greater financial, technical and marketegpurces than us and therefore may be able pomdsquicker to new or emerg
technologies and changes in customer requiremésgsa result, they may compete more effectivelypdne and other terms. Additional
those competitors may devote greater resourcesvalaping products or in promoting and selling th@ioducts to achieve greater ma
acceptance. Asure is actively taking measuregjdedito address our competitive challenges. Horyexecannot assure that we will be :
to achieve or maintain a competitive advantage vagipect to any of the competitive factors.

MARKETING

Asure’s marketing strategy has relied on the developraedt implementation of a comprehensive integratlzah pooted in ot
business objectives. The marketing plan includes primary objectives: 1) build brand awarene$sje¥elop lead generation programs
drive revenue, 3) launch products in a meaningfay wnd 4) develop an infrastructure that suppartsraeasures marketing activities.
deploy multi-faceted, multseries direct marketing programs to drive awareriegest and revenue. Marketing vehicles inclodeweb site
organic and paid search, advertising, public refetj direct marketing, events, social media, cdntaearketing and eMarketing. C
marketing plan addresses growth and retention gimalsall target audiences, from small and medsired businesses to Fortune
companies and divisions of enterprise organizatibremughout the United States, Europe and Asiafieaci

TRADEMARKS

We have registered Asure Softwara®a federal trademark with the U.S. Patent andemark Office. Our other federal tradem:
include AsureForce®, Face Time Clock®, Legiant Tearel® and ADI Time®and we have pending applications for federal regfisn o
the marks AsureSpace™, SmartView™ and GeoPunch™. al¥e use the common law trademarks iEmployee™ siieticty™,
AsureSpace™, ADI™ and Legiant Express™.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2013, we had a total of 125 eggas in the following departments:

NUMBER OF
FUNCTION EMPLOYEES
Research and developmt 25
Sales and marketir 37
Customer service and technical supj 44
Finance, human resources and administration 19
Total 12t

We continually evaluate and adjust the size andpoaition of our workforce. We also periodicallyaiet contractors to support ¢
sales and marketing, information technology andiathtnative functions. None of our employees apresented by a collective bargair
agreement. Asure has not experienced any worlpatms and we consider our relations with our engasyto be good. Additionally,
augment our workforce capacity in research and|dpwgent and customer service and technical sugpodontracting for services throt
third parties.
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Our future performance depends largely on ourtghiti continually and effectively attract, traimtain, motivate and manage hig
qualified and experienced technical, sales, margednd managerial personnel. Assrkiture development and growth depend on thete
of key management personnel and technical employeese uses incentives, including competitive cengation and stock options, to att
and retain welgualified employees. However, we cannot assure weatwill continue to attract and retain personndéthwihe requisit
capabilities and experience. The loss of one orenwdrAsures key management or technical personnel could haveterial and adver
effect on our business and operating results.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The information regarding directors and corporatgegnance matters is incorporated herein by referdrom the section entitl
“Election of Directors” of the Company’s definitiieroxy Statement (the “Proxy Statemerttf)be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, ®rélgistrantsAnnual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Jun20d4. The Pro»
Statement is anticipated to be filed within 120glafter the end of the registrant’s fiscal yeareshBecember 31, 2013.

The following table sets forth information regamglithe Company’s current executive officers as ofdé&6, 2014:

Name Age Position

Patrick Goepe 52  Chief Executive Office
Steven Rodrigue 47  Chief Operating Office
Jennifer Crow 47  Chief Financial Office
Mike Kinney 45  Vice President of Sale

Patrick Goepelwas elected to the CompasyBoard of Directors at its August 28, 2009 AnnMeeting of Shareholders. He v
subsequently appointed as Interim Chief Executitfec€ on September 15, 2009 and became Chief ExecOfficer of the Company as
January 1, 2010. Prior to his appointment, heeskas Chief Operating Officer of Patersons Glolzglr&ll. Previously, he was the Presic
and Chief Executive Officer of Fidelity InvestmentHuman Resource Services Division from 2006 to82@0esident and Chief Execut
Officer of Advantec from 2005 to 2006; and ExecetWice President of Business Development and USdlipes at Ceridian from 1994
2005. A former board member of iEmployee, Mr. Goeperently serves on the board of directors ofOMér Media, APPD Investments, ¢
SafeGuard World International.

Steven Rodriguezjoined the Company as Chief Operating Officer ineJ2011. From February through May 2011, the Coly
retained him as a consultant to evaluate and maé@mmendations related to the Company's sales ankieting strategies and proces
Prior to that, he served as the Principal for HE 8pnsulting company he founded. His past rolss @iclude Executive Vice President
Officer at Perquest, a national workforce managemempany, from 2008 to 2009; Senior Vice PresidenBales & Sales Operations
Ceridian Corporation, a human resource servicepeaog from 2001 to 2007; Regional Director for EpiSoftware from 2000 to 2001; ¢
Vice President of Sales at Automatic Data Procgs§iDP), Inc., a provider of payroll and benefitdna@nistration solutions, from 1990
2000. Mr. Rodriguez holds a Bachelors of Businedmiistration from the University of Oklahoma.

Jennifer Crow joined the Company as Vice President and Chiefrigiigh Officer in November 2012. Prior to joiningetiCompany
she served six years as Director of Finance atvAddower, Inc, a designer and manufacturer ofcatitpower backip systems. Prior
Active Power, Ms. Crow spent three years as finaarwbk accounting consultant providing litigation pag and financial consulting servic
From 1998 to 2003, she was Director of Financiahlsis at Broadwing Communications, a telecommuiuna infrastructure provider. H
background also includes other financial positiaith BellSouth, Southwestern Bell, and Arthur Arslar & Co. Ms. Crow is a Certifii
Public Accountant and holds a Bachelor of Busie®inistration degree from Southwest Texas Statésaity.

Mike Kinney joined the Company in May 2011 as the Vice Pregidéales. Prior to joining the Company, he wédegional Vic
President for the HR Payroll Division of Ceridiamrgoration from 2006 to 2010, where he led multimgions, focusing on rebuildi
market presence and driving tbpe revenue. From 2005 to 2006, he was Regioned Wresident at KFORCE, a recruiting process outs
company. He was also Regional Vice President aate Financial Staffing from 2001 to 2005. Mr. Ky holds a Bachelors of Arts
Political Science with a concentration in Econonfiesn the University of Texas at Austin

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We are a smaller reporting company as defined bg BRRb2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to gi®vhe informatio
required under this Item.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We are a smaller reporting company as defined bg RRb2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to gi®vhe informatio
required under this Item.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal offices are located in Austin, Texakere we occupy approximately 11,000 square featffide space under o
operating lease that expires in December 2015.8A%el approximately 6,000 square feet in FramingMassachusetts and 5,000 square
in Warwick, Rhode Island. We also lease officeesuit Michigan and the United Kingdom.

Management believes that the leased propertiesidedcabove are adequate to meet Asupeirrent operational requirements
can accommodate further physical expansion of @jgace as needed

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In December 2012, we demanded a purchase pricstagjnt from PeopleCube Holding B.V. and Meeting Bfakolding B.V., th
sellers of the capital stock of Meeting MaketJrited States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psezhén July 2012, based on matters
discovered after closing. Both parties agreedHerpostelosing adjustment to be resolved by an independecduntant consistent with -
purchase agreement. In January 2013, we filecindn federal court in Texas seeking to compelgbkers to comply with the workii
capital adjustment process. The sellers simultasigdiled a claim in the state court of Massachisselleging that we did not comply w
the working capital adjustment process. Our chaias amended in April 2013 to add contractual indéoation claims for the sellerdireacl
of warranties and representations made in the pseclagreement. In May 2013, the sellers amended dhiginal complaint to allec
misrepresentations and omissions by us in conmreetith the purchase transaction. The sellers soaiglunspecified amount of damages
the trebling of such damages once calculated. Wd & counterclaim in Massachusetts for contradhd@mpnification claims for the sellers’
breach of their warranties and representations.

In September 2013, we reached an agreement (b@sedtiie determination by the independent accountargettle our purcha
price post-closing adjustment dispute with theessll The parties agreed to a pdsising adjustment due to us with accrued inteod
$540,000. The parties agreed to reduce the origiB&l million deferred purchase payment by theplisting adjustment amount. This &
had the effect of reducing our lomgrm debt by a like amount. The remaining defeperthase price balance was $2.5 million. The &
also agreed to dismiss the litigation and claim$earas in favor of consolidating all remaining ditgs in the Massachusetts state court.

In February, 2014, we reached an agreement t@ sititlaims and dismiss all pending litigationtwibe sellers. Under the settlerr
agreement, the parties agreed to dismiss thetlitigand settle the remaining balance due of $2lkomon the Subordinated Notes Paya
PeopleCube Acquisition Note for $1.7 million, whictve paid within five business days after the datke the settlemel
agreement. Separately, our insurance carrier ddeepay us $500,000 in conjunction with the setdat. With the insurance proceeds
after offsetting any related litigation costs inagt in 2014, we expect to record a net gain of @gprately $1.0 million on the settlemen
the first quarter of 2014.

Finally, as part of the original purchase pricéha PeopleCube acquisition, we issued 255,000 studireur common stock subjec
a lockup of 125,000 shares expiring in June 2018 H30,000 shares expiring in June 2014. Thisese&ht removed the lockup for
remaining 130,000 shares.

Asure is periodically the defendant or plaintiffather actions arising in the normal course of hess. No pending legal proceedi
to which we are a party are material to us.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Capital Mafgstem under the symbol “ASURThe following table shows the hi
and low sale prices of our common stock for eadhqiuarter as reported by NASDAQ for the perioddidated, as adjusted for the 3-fr-
stock split of our common stock completed on AB€Ei| 2012:

2013 2012
HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
1st Quarte $ 7.2C $ 5.7t % 597 $ 417
2nd Quarte $ 6.5 $ 481 $ 517 $ 4.01
3rd Quartel $ 6.0C $ 42t $ 8.0 ¢ 4.11
4th Quartel $ 59z $ 40z $ 747 $ 4.7¢

DIVIDENDS

We have not paid cash dividends on our common ddocing fiscal years 2013 and 2012. We presentlnid to continue a poli
of retaining earnings for reinvestment in our bass) rather than paying cash dividends.

HOLDERS
As of March 26, 2014, we had approximately 787 ldtotders of record of our common stock.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COM PENSATION PLANS

The following table provides information as of Detmer 31, 2013 with respect to shares of our comsetook that we may iss
under our existing equity compensation plans (shareunts in thousands).

A B C
Number of Securities
Remaining
Available for Future
Issuance
Under Equity
Number of Securities Compensation
to be Issued Upon Weighted Average  Plans (Excluding
Exercise of Exercise Price of Securities
Outstanding Outstanding Reflected in Column
Plan Category Options Options A)
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Stockholders (. 79t $ 3.5¢ 10t
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Stockholders (2) -0- $ -0- -0-
Total 79t $ 3.5¢ 10¢
1) Consists of the 1996 Stock Option Plan and the Zafidty Plan.
(2) Our stockholders have previously approved eachuoggisting equity compensation pla
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

None.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We are a smaller reporting company as defined g RB-b2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to pl®v¥he informatio
required under this Item.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF F INANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In April 2012, we effected a 3-f@-stock split. Share and per share informatioroum financial statements and the follow
discussion reflect the impact of the stock split.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Report represent ford@oking statements. These statements involve knewd unknown risk
uncertainties and other factors that may causeabhotisults of operations, levels of activity, econo performance, financial condition
achievements to be materially different from futwesults of operations, levels of activity, economirformance, financial condition
achievements as expressed or implied by such fdreaking statements.

Asure has attempted to identify these forward-logkstatements with the words “believes,” “estimitéplans,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “may,” “could” and other similar esgssions. Although these forward-looking statemeetfiect managemers’current plar
and expectations, which we believe reasonable atheffiling date of this Report, they inherentlyeasubject to certain risks ¢
uncertainties. Additionally, Asure is under noigation to update any of the forward-looking stag¢eis after the date of this Form KO
conform such statements to actual results.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal mef$ indicated, the percentage of total revenuagsepted by certain items in Aswre’
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{to

2013 2012
Revenue: 100.(% 100.(%
Gross Margir 74.¢ 77.1
SG&A 52.C 59.1
R&D 11.1 11.¢
Amortization of Intangible Asse 8.€ 8.€
Total Operating Expensi 717 79.7
Interest, Mark to Market & Original Issue Discol (9.2) (9.9)
Other Income (Loss), Ni (0.4) (2.7
Net Loss (6.5% (15.2%
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Overview

Asure is a leading global provider of wbhsed workforce and workspace management solutiat€nable organizations to man
their office environments as well as their humasotece and payroll processes effectively and effity. Our software is delivered primal
as software-as-gervice, or SaaS, and on premise. Asure markstste of hardware products that enable time anifitfamanagement ar
are fully integrated with our software offeringd/e also offer a wide range of professional servifmrsimplementation and custon
customization. Our revenues consist of cloud basdtivare subscription revenue, hardware revenu@terance and support revenue
premise software license revenue and professi@naicgs revenue.

In 2012, Asure acquired Meeting Maker — United &atinc., doing business as PeopleCube (“PeopléLubbe PeopleCult
product line is part of the AsureSpace™ productiffaeind includes software that helps customersedimtegrated facility management
offices, conference rooms, video conferencing, &and training, alternative workspaces and lokd®s/ u

Our product offerings consist of AsureSpace™ wakpl management solutions that enable organizat®mmsanage their offic
environments and optimize real estate utilizatimd AsureForce@&me and labor management solutions which help rorgdéion optimiz
labor and labor administration costs and activiti® target our sales and marketing efforts to dewange of audiences, from small
mediumsized businesses to Fortune 500 companies andodisi®f enterprise organizations throughout thetéthiStates, Europe €
Asia/Pacific. We generate sales of our solutiomsubh our direct sales teams and indirectly throoghchannel partners. We are expan
our investment in our direct sales teams to cometiouaddress our market opportunity.

Asure plans to continue to target small and mediusinesses and divisions of enterprises. In amfdith continuing to develop ¢
workforce management solutions and release newwvandt updates and enhancements, we are continuingctieely explore othi
opportunities to acquire additional products orhtexlogies to complement our current software andices. As the overall workfor
management solutions market continues to experisigeéficant growth related to SaaS products, Asnrends to continue to focus on si
of our Meeting Room Manager, PeopleCube, and ARISSaased products.

In connection with our April 2012 3-f@-stock split, we made cash payments based uponldsag price of our shares on
record date in lieu of the issuance of fractioitrres.

In March 2013, we amended our Senior Note Paydialieprovided for updated financial covenants inhexgye for an increase in
floor interest rate from 10% to 11.5%. See Note the accompanying financial statements for mofermation.

In September 2013, we entered into a third amentrtee our Senior Note Payable. Under this amendm&a borrowed &
additional $2.5 million in September 2013 and baed an additional $1.5 million in December 2013. Wed the net proceeds to pay
two Legiant Acquisition Notes totaling $1.7 millipas well as the two related party 15% Notes toga$800,000. These loans were all du
October 2014. Under the latest amendment, we &langed certain financial covenants. See Note Baratcompanying financial statems
for more information.

In October 2013, we paid in full, less a 5% disddion early payment, the note entered into in coofion with the purchase of t
assets of ADITime, LLC (“ADI").In conjunction with the acquisition of the assetsA®I in October 2011, we issued a $1.1 million e
payable to the seller. This note bore interesharmual rate of 0.16%, was due October 2014 asdgwaranteed by us. We made a prin
payment of $245,000 in July 2012 and a final payn@n$811,000 in October 2013 in full payment ofstmote. See Note 6 in t
accompanying financial statements for more inforomat

In March 2014, we entered into a new Credit Agresnamd Guaranty and Security Agreement with Welisgp Bank, Nation
Association. See “Recent Developmeragiove and Note 14 in the accompanying financidkestants for more information. We used
proceeds of the $15.0 million term loan under thred@ Agreement to finance the repayment of all ante outstanding under our Ic
agreement with Deerpath Funding, LP (“Deerpath) dre payment of certain fees, cost and expenssedeo the Credit Agreement.

Under the continued guidance and direction of dveatbrs and Chief Executive Officer, Asure willntmue to implement i
corporate strategy for growing its software andvises business. However, uncertainties and chgdlerremain and there can be
assurances that Asure can successfully grow itnteas or achieve profitability and positive castwBl during calendar year 2014.
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Revenue

Our revenue was derived from the following sour@eshousands):

Increase

Revenue 2013 2012 (Decrease) %

Cloud revenut $ 12,87 $ 9,94¢ $ 2,92¢ 29
Hardware revenu 2,13¢ 1,412 725 51
Maintenance and support rever 6,67¢ 5,60¢ 1,071 19
On premise software license revel 1,09z 1,211 (119 (10
Professional services revenue 2,69: 1,78¢ 90¢ 51
Total revenue $ 2547: $ 19,96¢ $ 5,50¢ 28

Our product offerings are categorized into Asuresfad and AsureForce®sureSpace™ offers workplace management solt
that enable organizations to manage their officeirenments and optimize real estate utilizationd @&sureForce®offers time and lab:
management solutions which help organization ogmabor and labor administration costs and a@witBoth product groupings inclu
cloud revenue, hardware revenue, maintenance gmbgurevenue, on premise software license revamaeprofessional services rever
AsureSpace™ revenues include PeopleCube and MeRowmn Manager revenues. AsureForce®enues include ADI, Legiant
iIEmployee revenues.

Our total revenue in 2013 was $25.5 million, as pared to $20.0 million in 2012. Total revenue repras our consolidat
revenue, including sales of our scheduling softwtnee and attendance and human resource soft@angplementary hardware device!
enhance our software products, software maintenandesupport services, installation and trainingises and other professional services.

Total revenue increased by $5.5 million, or 27.6862013 as compared to 2012. We attribute $5.0omiof the total revent
increase to AsureSpace™ and the full year of P€axle operations, which we acquired in the thirdrigmaof 2012. Overall AsureSpac
revenues increased $5.0 million, consisting of & $8illion increase in cloud revenue, a $1.2 millincrease in maintenance and sug
revenue, a $912,000 increase in professional srvievenue and a $464,000 increase in hardwareuevdhe remaining increase
attributable to the AsureForce® product line.

Cloud revenue increased $2.9 million, or 29.4% @@%2. In AsureSpace™, PeopleCubefoud revenue accounted for $2.2 mil
of this increase. Meeting Room Manager cloud reeeou 2013 increased $341,000, or 19%, over 20d2dcievenue. In AsureForce®DI
and Legiant cloud revenue increased $525,000, or 29%, antl,#0@, or 21%, over 2012, respectively. iEmployleeid revenue decreas
by $306,000, or 8%. The latter was due to turrfomus away from the iIEmployee software product fowlising resources on the ne
technology in the ADI software subscription solago Overall, we attribute our cloud revenue incesa® a combination of new sales of
by the accretive nature of recurring cloud revenue.

During 2013, hardware revenues increased $723.0061.2%, over 2012. For AsureSpace™, in 2013, lReapes hardwar
revenue increased $384,000, or 279%, from 201582 $00 and Meeting Room Manager hardware revamreased $79,000, or 92%
$166,000. AsureForce®ardware revenue increased $260,000, or 21.9%, 20&2. ADI and Legiant had $1.1 million and $410,
respectively, of hardware revenue in 2013. ADI'sduweare revenue increased $235,000, or 27%, fron2.2D&giants hardware reven
remained consistent with the prior year.

During 2013, maintenance and support revenue igeteo $6.7 million in 2013 from $5.6 million in 28, a $1.1 million, or 19.1¢
increase from 2012. Peoplecube, ADI and Legiant $28 million, $977,000 and $1.2 million, respeetiy of maintenance and supy
revenue in 2013. PeopleCube’s maintenance and gugyenue increased $1.1 million, or 96% from 20ARI and Legiant$ maintenanc
and support revenues remained fairly consistertt @@12. Meeting Room Manager had $2.2 million inntemance and support rever
which remained consistent with 2012. Contributiogthis overall increase was new onetime licensessand aggressive focus on
retaining and winning back maintenance and suppastomers, as well as the continued enforcemeupfautorenew provision (abse
sufficient notice) to our annual maintenance arghsut contracts.
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During 2013, on premise software license revenussedsed $119,000, or 9.8% as compared 2012. Tamlbwdecrease
AsureSpace™ was $51,000, or 8%. While PeopleCubeas$229,000, or 127%, increase in on premise soéicense revenues, Meel
Room Manager on premise software license revenaegedsed $279,000, or 67%. In AsureForce®, overall decrease was $69,00(
11%, driven primarily from a decrease in ADI on mise software license revenue. We continue to famusefforts on recurring cloi
revenue from our direct customers, as opposeddtima on premise software license revenue.

Professional services revenue increased $908,0080.8%, over 2012 all in our AsureSpace™ produeeopleCube professiol
services revenue increased $1.1 million or 167% 8042, while Meeting Room Manager professionavises revenue decreased $152
or 23%, in 2013 as compared to 2012.

Although our sales are concentrated in certain shiéks, including corporate, education, healthcgmiernmental, legal and non-
profit, our total customer base is widely spreadose industries. Geographically, we sell our podsiuworldwide, but sales are larg
concentrated in the United States and Canada. tidddily, Asure has a distribution partner in Aadix. For 2013, Asure continued to ta
small and medium businesses and divisions of emsepin these same industries. As the overall feock management solutions mal
continues to experience significant growth relate®aaS products, Asure will continue to focus ales of its Meeting Room Manager
Demand, PeopleCube and ADI SaaS products.

In addition to continuing to develop our workfonceanagement solutions and release new software egpdatd enhancements,
continue to actively explore other opportunitiesaoquire additional products or technologies to glement our current software ¢
services. Through acquisitions in 2011 of ADI arelant, we expanded our cloud computing time atehdénce software and manager
services business. The 2012 acquisition of PeafleCyave Asure a product line that includes softwiar assist customers in driv
integrated facility management of offices, confeerooms, video conferencing, events and trairaiigrnative workspaces and lobby use.

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $19.0 million in 2013 and $15.4ioniin 2012, an increase of $3.7 million, or 228 Gross margin percenta
were 74.8% for 2013 and 77.1% for 2012.

Our cost of sales relates primarily to compensatind related consulting expenses, hardware expamsbthe amortization of ¢
purchased software development costs. These expeagresented approximately 82% and 76% of tla ¢ost of sales for 2013 and 2C
respectively. These expenses increased approxin&ite3 million, or 52%, over 2012. Salary expems&eased $966,000, primarily due !
full year of PeopleCube salaries of $1.3 milliogpresenting a compensation increase of $1.1 mjlbffset by a reduction in Meeting Ro
Manager and Legiant salaries. We include intangibdertization related to developed and acquirelrtelogy within cost of sales.

During 2014, we expect to continue proactively ngamg our cost of sales by maximizing efficienciesoughout our company.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A8&kpenses were $13.3 million in 2013 and $11.8 omlin 2012, an increase of $
million, or 12.3%. SG&A expenses were 52.0% and %9of total revenues for 2013 and 2012, respdgtive

The $1.4 million increase is primarily due to al fygar of PeopleCube expenses, as well as increseded and marketing effol
PeopleCubes SG&A increased $417,000, or 12%, over 2012. Teaining increase is due to increased sales anHetiray expense
including lead generation and other marketing egpsn

We will incur significant additional legal expensasd/or professional servicestated expenses in the future if we pursue fu
acquisitions of products or businesses, even ifitmnately do not consummate any acquisition.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development (“R&D&xpenses were $2.8 million in 2013 and $2.4 million2012, an increase of $459,00(
19.3%. R&D expenses were 11.1% and 15.3% of reeemu2013 and 2012, respectively.

The $459,000 increase is primarily due to a fulhryef PeopleCube R&D expenses. PeopleGulsempensation and benefits
R&D increased approximately $709,000 from 2012 sas offset by lower consulting fees in 2013.
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We continue to improve our products and technokgieough organic improvements and through acquirvedlectual property. Tt
workforce product line continued to innovate by iaddmobile solutions, world class SaaS hostingastitucture and a proprietary time cl
product set. The proprietary time clock produdtiseludes multiple models which incorporate keym@adl touch screen user interfaces
well as proximity card, bar code card, and bioneediata input. The workforce software product licestinued to evolve through quarte
feature releases and monthly maintenance reled$ese product releases continued to serve cl@ntests, and maintain in managenment’
view a technological edge with competition.

Additionally, we continue to develop Meeting Roonaihdger and released a new version in November 2018.release is tl
culmination of more than 700 development hours armaVides more than 200 fixes and solutions. The mewgion includes an improv
Outlook Addin that offers easier updates and group policyriblistions; provides immediate notice of potentiaitidok calendar bookir
conflicts and improved display of available resasrtcfacilitates easier user interaction betweentiMgdRoom Manager and Outlook; ¢
provides clearer distinction between prep, meedingd cleardp times so organizations have better informatiorhow their rooms are bei
used.

Our development efforts for future releases andarobments are driven by feedback received fromeaisting and potenti
customers and by gauging market trends. We belie/bave the appropriate development team to desigrfurther improve our workfor
management solutions.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expenses were $2.2 million, or 8.6%refenues, in 2013 as compared to $1.7 million8.6f6 of revenues,
2012. Amortization expenses relate to the acgoistof ADI and Legiant in the fourth quarter ofl20and the acquisition of PeopleCub
the third quarter of 2012 (see Note 5 in the acanymg financial statements).

Other Income and Loss

Other Loss was $2.3 million for the year ended 2883ompared to $2.2 million in the year ended 20Qther Loss in 2013 a
2012 is primarily comprised of interest expense amartization of original issue discount from aaiion-related debt.

Income Taxes

At December 31, 2013, we had federal net operdiisg carryforwards of approximately $116.5 millideederal R&D cred
carryforwards of approximately $4.9 million andeaftative minimum tax credit carryforwards of appnoately $161,000. The net operal
loss and Federal R&D credit carryforwards will eepin varying amounts from 2018 through 2034, if ntlized. Minimum tax cred
carryforwards carry forward indefinitely.

Income tax expense decreased to $117,000 in 20h¥ared to an expense of $285,000 in 2012. Thgeeck represent an effect
tax rate of 7.6% and 10.4% in 2013 and 2012, reiy@dy. The 2013 income tax expense is primarily do deferred taxes on the amortiza
of goodwill for tax purposes and the results okfgn operations.

As a result of our various acquisitions in prioay® we may be subject to a substantial annualdiion in the utilization of the n
operating losses and credit carryforwards due ¢o“thange in ownershipprovisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 &hnue
limitation may result in the expiration of net ogting losses before utilization.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the timing dadliieng the benefits of our favorable tax attrilauta future tax returns, we he
placed a valuation allowance against our net dedfetax asset, exclusive of goodwill. During 2018, wcreased the valuation allowance
approximately $286,000 due primarily to operatiansjuding expiration of tax carryforwards. Appmmately $8.3 million of the valuatic
allowance relates to tax benefits for stock optieductions included in our net operating loss darward which we will allocate, if and wh
realized, directly to contributed capital to thees the benefits exceed amounts attributable ¢k lbeferred compensation expense.

We consider the undistributed earnings of our fpresubsidiaries permanently reinvested and, aatgidiwe have not provided 1
U.S. federal or state income taxes thereon.

Net Loss

Net loss was $1.7 million and $3.0 million in 2048d 2012, respectively. The decrease in net l@ss$4.4 million or 45.2%. N
loss as a percentage of total revenues was 6.5% %88 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At and for the year ended
December 31,
2013 2012

(in thousands)

Working capital (deficit $ (7,837) $ (9,387
Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment 3,93¢ 2,171
Cash provided by operating activiti 2,02t 2,80¢
Cash used in investing activiti (43%) (10,979
Cash provided by financing activiti 17C 9,257

Working Capital. We had a working capital deficit of $7.8 million Recember 31, 2013, a decrease in our deficit & #iillion
from the $9.4 million deficit at December 31, 20Ithe working capital deficit at December 31, 20d8udes $10.1 million of deferr
revenue. Deferred revenue is an obligation toguerffuture services. We expect that deferred regenill convert to future revenue as
perform our services, but this does not represdénté payments. We attribute the decrease in ouking capital deficit to an increase in ¢
and cash equivalents of $1.8 million, an increasadcounts receivable of $862,000 together witleerehse in accounts payable of :
million. This is offset by an increase in curremttes payable of $858,000,an increase in deferreeintee of $375,000 and an increas
accrued expenses of $677,000 in 2013 comparedid. 20

Operating Activities. Cash provided by operating activities was $2illion in 2013 and $2.8 million in 2012. The $2.0llilon of
cash provided by operating activities during 201&vprimarily driven by growth in deferred revenue$828,000 and net income (al
adjustment for nomash items) of $1.7 million. The $2.8 millionadsh provided by operating activities during 20E&primarily driven b
growth in deferred revenue of $940,000, a decrgmaecounts receivable of $1.1 million and net meo(after adjustment for narash items
of $571,000.

Investing Activities. Cash used in investing activities during 2013 w4353000. The cash used in investing activitie2dth3 wa
primarily comprised of purchases of $383,000 ofyerty and equipment and purchases of intangibletsis$ $62,000. Cash used in inves
activities during 2012 was $11.0 million. Compotsenf this $11.0 million include the acquisition BeopleCube for $9.8 million a
purchases of $1.3 million of intangibles and proyp@nd equipment, offset by the collection of nateseivable of $77,000. Although
believe our current operations are not capitalnsitee, we anticipate approximately $400,000 to $800 of 2014 capital expenditures
upgrade our cloud infrastructure and position itftdure growth.

Financing Activities. Cash provided by financing activities during 2018sv$170,000. We incurred $4.0 million of debt &l a:
$3.5 million in cash from stock issuances, offsehbte payments of $6.9 million. Cash providedibgncing activities during 2012 was $
million. We incurred $14.5 million of debt pringifly to fund the PeopleCube acquisition, offsetrimpte payments of $3.9 million a
$500,000 on our line of credit.

NASDAQ Matters. In April, 2013, The NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASBR) notified us that we had failed to maintai
minimum market value of listed securities (“MVLS8f $35 million over the previous 30 consecutive ibess days as required by -
NASDAQ Capital Market set forth in Listing Rule 3Hb)(2). NASDAQ also advised us in its letter that did not meet the requireme
under NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 5550(b)(1), whichuees maintenance of $2.5 million of stockholdeggiuity, and Rule 5550(b)(:
which requires net income from continuing operatiofi $500,000 or more in 2012 or in two of the ¢hyears 2010, 2011 and 2012. Ui
Rule 5550, we could regain compliance and avoidpibtential for delisting of our common stock byisfging any one of the minimu
MVLS test, the minimum equity test or the minimurat rincome test. In order to meet the minimum equoéguirement, we increas
stockholdersequity by selling 662,000 shares for net proceéd&3at million in May 2013. In August, 2013, NAS@Anotified us that sin
the May 2013 sale of securities, which was at aadist to the then current market price, includedaie officers and directors, the priv
placement required shareholder approval underrigsRule 5635(c).We held a special meeting held ept&nber, 2013 at which ¢
stockholders voted to ratify this sale of sharesunofficers and directors. In October, 2013,reeeived notification from NASDAQ that \
had regained compliance with both Listing Rules36Band 5550(b).

Sources of Liquidity. As of December 31, 2013, Aswgirincipal sources of liquidity consisted of appneately $3.9 million ¢
current cash and cash equivalents as well as faask generated from operations. We believe tleahawe and/or will generate suffici
cash for our short- and lonigfim needs, including meeting the requirementsusfamended Notes Payable, and the related debhao
requirements. We are continuing to reduce expeases percentage of revenue and thus may utilize&eash balances in the shtetm tc
reduce longerm costs. Based on current internal projectioves believe that we currently have and/or will getersufficient cash for o
operational needs, including any required debt paye for at least the next twelve months. We atlilygoroject that we can generate posi
cash flows from our operating activities in 2014.
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Debt Matters In September 2013, we entered into a third amemdto our Senior Note Payable. Under this amemdme
borrowed an additional $2.5 million in Septembet2@nd borrowed an additional $1.5 million in Deb@m2013. We used the net proceeds
to pay the two Legiant Acquisition Notes totalin B million, as well as the two related party 15%t@¢$ totaling $800,000. These loans were
all due in October 2014. Under the latest amendmemntilso changed certain financial covenants. @lieve we are in compliance with the
amended covenant requirements as of December 33,8@ expect to be in compliance over the subsedwelve month period. See Not
in the accompanying financial statements for mofermation.

In October 2013, we paid in full, less a 5% disddon early payment, the note entered into in confion with the purchase of the
assets of ADITime, LLC (“ADI"). In conjunction witthe acquisition of the assets of ADI in Octobet POwe issued a $1.1 million note
payable to the seller. This note bore intereshareual rate of 0.16%, was due October 2014 aischwaranteed by us. We made a principal
payment of $245,000 in July 2012 and a final paynoé$811,000 in October 2013 in full payment dfthote. See Note 6 in the
accompanying financial statements for more inforomat

In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sditdaims and dismiss all pending litigation wiRleopleCube Holding B.V. and
Meeting Maker Holding B.V., the sellers of the d¢apstock of Meeting Maker — United States, IndgdPeopleCube) that we purchased in
July 2012.

Under the settlement agreement, the parties disthige litigation and we settled the remaining hadadue of $2.5 million on the
Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquiditmte by paying $1.7 million. Our insurance caragreed to pay us $500,000 in
conjunction with the settlement. With the insurapcoceeds and after offsetting any related ligatosts incurred in 2014, we expect to
record a net gain of approximately $1.0 milliontba settlement in the first quarter of 2014.

Finally, as part of the original purchase pricéhie Meeting Maker acquisition, we issued 255,000 ah of our common stock
subject to a lockup expiring as to 125,000 sharelune 2013 and 130,000 shares in June 2014.s&ttisment also removed the lockup for
the remaining 130,000 shares.

In March 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreemaeitt Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as auistrative agent, and the
lenders that are party thereto. The Credit Agreé¢mmvides for a term loan in the amount of $15iliom. The term loan will mature in
March~2019. The outstanding principal amount of the tkyam is payable follows:

$187,500 on June 30, 2014 and the last day of feszai quarter thereafter up to March 31, 2C
$281,250 on June 30, 2016 and the last day of el quarter thereafter up to March 31, 2017;
$375,000 on June 30, 2017 and the last day of feszai quarter thereafte

In March 2014, we used the proceeds of the term fodinance the repayment of all amounts outstamdinder our loan agreem
with Deerpath Funding, LP (“Deerpathénd the payment of certain fees, cost and expewsaed to the Credit Agreement. The Deer
loan bore interest at a floating annual rate etualBOR plus 8.0%, subject to a LIBOR floor of %50r a minimum of 11.5%. We expec
incur, in the first quarter of 2014, a otime charge of approximately $1.4 million in contiee with the refinancing, of which approximat
$700,000 is non-cash deferred financing costs.

The Credit Agreement also provides for a revohMimen commitment in the aggregate amount of up t6 #8llion. The outstandir
principal amount of the revolving loan is due araygble in March 2019. Additionally, the Credit Agneent provides for a $10.0 milli
uncommitted incremental term loan facility to sugigmermitted acquisitions.

The term loan and revolving loan will bear intey@gtour option, at (i) the greater of 1% or LIBQ#Rys an applicable margin or (i
base rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) atuspplicable margin. We have elected to usd.ither rate plus the applicable mar¢
which is 5% for the first six months. Interest iaypble monthly and the margin varies based uporlewarage ratio. See table below
applicable margin rates.

Total Leverage Ratio Base Rate Margin LIBOR Rate Margin
> 2.75:1.C 3.00% 4.00%
< 2.75:1.0 but > 2.25: 2.50% 3.50%
< 2.25:1 2.00% 3.00%
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We may voluntarily prepay the principal amount tartsling under the revolving loan at any time withpanalty or premium. W
must pay a premium if we make a voluntary prepayméutstanding principal under the term loan dgrthe first two years following tl
closing date or if we are required to prepay outditeg principal under the Credit Agreement withqaeds resulting from certain asset sali
debt incurrence. The premium is 1% or 0.5% of thiegpal amount being prepaid depending on whethemprepayment occurs on or be
the first anniversary of the closing date or subsed to the first anniversary date through the sécanniversary of the closing date
addition, we are required to repay outstanding giyped with 50% of excess cash flow, certain ovevaattes, asset sale proceeds,
proceeds, and proceeds from judgments and setttemen

Under the Credit Agreement, we are required to taaira fixed charge coverage ratio of not less th&nto 1.0 beginning with t|
quarter ending June 30, 2014 and each calendateqtiaereafter, and a leverage ratio of not grethgm 3.5 to 1.0 beginning with the qua
ending June 30, 2014 with the levels stepping dihereafter.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmatinel negative covenants, including, among otharstaltions with respect
debt, liens, fundamental changes, sale of asseisapment of debt, investments, dividends, ands&etions with affiliates.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventstdudt, including, among others, payment defaus/enant defaults, judgme
defaults, bankruptcy and insolvency events, cradfaults to certain indebtedness, incorrect reptatiens or warranties, and change
control. In some cases, the defaults are subjemigtomary notice and grace period provisions.

In connection with the Credit Agreement, we and wimolly owned active subsidiaries entered into aa@noty and Securi
Agreement, in March 2014, with Wells Fargo Bank.denthe Guaranty and Security Agreement, we antl ehour wholly owned acti\
subsidiaries have guaranteed all obligations umiderCredit Agreement and granted a security intdresubstantially all of our and ¢
subsidiaries’ assets.

See Note 14 in the accompanying financial statesnmtmore information about the Credit Agreemamd &uaranty and Secur
Agreement.

We cannot assure that we can grow our cash balandsit our cash consumption and thus maintaifficgent cash balances for ¢
planned operations or future acquisitions. Futwsiness demands may lead to cash utilization atdeyreater than recently experienced.
may need to raise additional capital in the futitewever, we cannot assure that we will be ableatse additional capital on accept:
terms, or at all. Subject to the foregoing, manag@nbelieves that we have sufficient capital agditlity to fund and cultivate the growth
our current and future operations for at leastriyet 12 months and to maintain compliance withtétens of our debt agreements and rel
covenants or to obtain compliance through debtymeats made with the available cash on hand ocipated for receipt in the ordin¢
course of operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We have prepared our consolidated financial statsnan accordance with U.S. generally accepted wdang principles ar
including the accounts of Asuseivholly owned subsidiaries. We have eliminatedigihificant intercompany transactions and balaiirteise
consolidation. Preparation of the consolidatedrfaial statements in conformity with U.S. generalcepted accounting principles requ
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenzitthe reported amounts of the assets and iliglsiland disclosure of contingent as
and liabilities at the date of the financial stadents and the reported amounts of revenues and sapeturing the reporting period. Th
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uelgis that affect the reported amounts of assetdiailities, the disclosure of conting:
assets and liabilities at fiscal year end and #monted amounts of revenues and expenses durinfjstted year. The more significe
estimates made by management include the valualiowance for our gross deferred tax asset, laagairment, useful lives of fixed ass
the determination of the fair value of our loliggd assets and the fair value of assets acqaineldiabilities assumed during acquisitions.
base our estimates on historical experience andaoious other assumptions that management beliexeseasonable under the gi
circumstances. These estimates could be matedifigrent under different conditions and assummioAdditionally, the actual amou
could differ from the estimates made. Managemenbgigally evaluates estimates used in the prejmraif our financial statements
continued reasonableness. We prospectively apgisoapate adjustments, if any, to our estimategtagpon our periodic evaluation.

We believe the following are our critical accoungtioolicies:
Revenue Recognition

Our revenues consist of software-as-a-service @Jaafferings, timebased software subscriptions, and perpetual sadtieens
sale arrangements that also, typically, includelWvare, maintenance/support and professional serelements. We recognize revenue v
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,etiglhas occurred, the fee is fixed or determinabig collectability is probable. Software
and software-related elements are recognized inrdance with ASC 985-605Software Revenue Recognition Nonsoftware revent
elements are recognized in accordance with ASC2Z0Bevenue Recognition Multiple-Element Arrangemer8sce we currently offer o
software solutions under either a perpetual licetisee-based subscription or SaaS model, revenue recogrithing varies based on wh
form of software rights the customer purchases.
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SaaS arrangements and tilmeesed software subscriptions typically have ariainterm ranging from one to three years anc
renewable on an annual basis. A typical SaaS germant will also include hardware, setup and imgletation services. We allocate
value of the SaaS arrangement to each separat®fuaitcounting based on vendor-specific objectivieleance (“VSOE")of selling price
when it exists, thirgearty evidence of selling price for like servicasbest estimated selling price. Revenue allocttetthe SaaS/softwe
subscription element is recognized ratably overntbecancellable term of the SaaS/subscription serRewenue allocated to other unit:
accounting included in the arrangement are recegrés outlined in the paragraphs below.

Perpetual software licenses are typically sold inltiple-element arrangements that include hardware, mainteisupport ai
professional services. Software license revendetgrmined under the residual method, are generatiygnized on the date the produt
delivered to the customer if VSOE of fair valuestsifor all undelivered elements of the softwararsgement. If VSOE of fair value does
exist for an undelivered element, the entire saféwarrangement is deferred and recognized ratablgr the remaining noaancellabl
maintenance term after all other undelivered elambave been delivered. We base VSOE of fair vedueur maintenance, training
installation services on the prices charged fosghservices when sold separately. Revenue altb¢atbardware, maintenance and sen
elements included in the arrangement are recogrigexnltiined below.

Hardware devices sold to customers (typically tioleck, LCD panel and other peripheral devices) ao¢ essential to tl
functionality of the software and as such are &@ads norsoftware elements for revenue recognition purpostsdware revenue
recognized when title passes to the customer, dllpithe date the hardware is shipped. If hardvimeold under a HaaS arrangement, tit
the hardware remains with Asure and hardware usaggnue is recognized ratably over the gancellable term of the hardware ser
delivery, typically one year.

Our professional services offerings which typicafiglude data migration, set up, training, and enpéntation services are also
essential to the functionality of our productstlaisd parties or customers themselves can perfbesd services. Set up and implement
services typically occur at the start of the sofevarrangement while certain other professionalises, depending on the nature of
services and customer requirements, may occur aewsnths later. Professional services perfornmdaf fixed fee can be reasone
estimated and are recognized on a proportionalopaence basis. Revenue for professional servicgagements billed on a time ¢
materials basis are recognized as the servicedetikeered. Revenues on all other professionalisesvengagements are recognized upo
earlier of the completion of the services delivégalr the expiration of the customer’s right toewe the service.

Maintenance/support revenues are recognized ratabgr the norcancellable term of the support agreement. |
maintenance/support terms are typically one toetlyesmars and are renewable on an annual basis.

We do not recognize revenue for agreements wititsigf return, refundable fees, cancellation rigittacceptance clauses until tr
return, refund or cancellation rights have expioedicceptance has occurred. Our arrangementsregtilers do not allow for any rights
return.

Deferred revenue includes amounts received frorfomess in excess of revenue recognized, and is idsetpof deferred
maintenance, service and other revenue. We repegieferred revenues when we complete the sermitewer the terms of the
arrangements, primarily ranging from one to threarsy.

Intangible Assets and Goodwiill

We record the assets acquired and liabilities aedumbusiness combinations at their respectivevilues at the date of acquisiti
with any excess purchase price recorded as goodteiluation of intangible assets andprecess research and development entails signi
estimates and assumptions including, but not lignite estimating future cash flows from productsabeveloping appropriate discount r:
estimating probability rates for the continuatidrcostomer relationships and renewal of customatracts and approximating the useful i
of the intangible assets acquired. U.S. generaltgpted accounting principles (“GAAPfquire that we not amortize intangible assetsr
than goodwill with an indefinite life until we detaine their life as finite. We must amortize ather intangible assets over their useful li
We currently amortize our acquired intangible asgéth definite lives over periods ranging from doaine years.

Impairment of Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assts

In accordance with FASB ASC 350, we review and @at our londived assets for impairment whenever events or gharnir
circumstances indicate that we may not recover tieti book value. When such factors and circuncstaexist, including those noted abi
we compare the assetsrrying amounts against the estimated undiscoucdstl flows we expect to generate with those assetsthei
estimated useful lives. If the carrying amounts greater than the undiscounted cash flows, wenattithe fair values of those asset
discounting the projected cash flows. We recordextess of the carrying amounts over the fair@slas impairments in that fiscal period.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase pria business combination over the fair valupatftangible and intangible as:
acquired in a business combination. We test goddaviimpairment on an annual basis in the fouitledl quarter of each year, and betw
annual tests if indicators of potential impairmerist, using a fair-valubased approach. There has been no impairment afwglbdor the
periods presented. See Notes 4 and 5 in the aceyimgafinancial statements for additional infornaatiregarding goodwill.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”)issued guidance on disclosures of additional infdrom witr
respect to changes in accumulated other comprateimsiome (“AOCI”") balances by component and significant items reiegsout of
AOCI. Expanded disclosures for presentation of geanin AOCI involve disaggregating the total chamjeeach component of ott
comprehensive income as well as presenting sepafateeach such component the portion of the clkaingAOCI related to (1) amoul
reclassified into income and (2) currgrgriod other comprehensive income. Additionallyr &amounts reclassified into income, we
required to disclose in one location, based upeh specific AOCI component, the amounts impactirdividual income statement line iter
We are required to disclose the income statemeatitéem impacts only for components of AOCI redfgss into income in their entirety. V
would make the disclosures required with respedntome statement line item impacts in either tlotes to the consolidated finan:
statements or parenthetically on the face of tharftial statements. For us, this Accounting Statslbipdate was effective beginning Jan
1, 2013. Because this standard only impacts prasentand disclosure requirements, its adoptionraitlhave a material impact on
consolidated results of operations or financialditbon.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standatddate No. 2013-11 (ASU 20113t), which updated the guidance in ASC Ti
740, Income Taxes. The amendments in ASU 201 generally provide guidance for the presentadioumnrecognized tax benefits when a
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossadax credit carryforward exists at the reportilage. The guidance requires an unrecog!
tax benefit to be presented as a decrease in aeldfiax asset where a net operating loss, a sitaaloss, or a tax credit carryforward ex
and certain criteria are met. This guidance becoaffieetive for us as of January 1, 2014 and is cbest with our present practice.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are a smaller reporting company as defined g R2b2 under the Exchange Act and are not requireddeige the informatiol
required under this Item.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A

The financial statements and supplementary datarestby this Item 8 are listed in Items 15(a) (@l 42) of Part Il of this Report
( Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNT ANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Control and Procedures

Based on an evaluation under the supervision atll the participation of our management, our priatipxecutive officer ar
principal financial officer have concluded that alisclosure controls and procedures as definedulesR13a-15(e) and 15ib(e) under tr
Exchange Act were effective as of December 31, 201frovide reasonable assurance that informatguired to be disclosed by us
reports that we file or submit under the Exchangei# (i) recorded, processed, summarized and tegavithin the time periods specifiec
the Securities and Exchange Commission rules amasfand (ii) accumulated and communicated to ouragament, including our princij
executive officer and principal financial officexs appropriate to allow timely decisions regardequired disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaiditaining adequate internal control over finah@porting (as defined in Rt
13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. Management conduatedvaluation of the effectiveness of our intewaitrol over financial reportir
based on the criteria set forth in Internal Contrdintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of t
Treadway Commission (1992 Framework) (“COSMased on our assessment, management has conchategut internal control ov
financial reporting was effective as of December 3113 to provide reasonable assurance regardegettability of financial reporting ai
the preparation of financial statements in accardamith U.S. generally accepted accounting primspl

This annual report does not include an attestatgport of our independent registered public acdognfirm regarding our intern
control over financial reporting. Managemeanteport was not subject to attestation by our pedeent registered public accounting
pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exch&@mmnmission that permit us to provide only manag#ma reporting in this annual report.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE R EGISTRANT

The information required under this Item is incagied by reference from our definitive proxy stagemnto be filed relating to o
2014 annual meeting of shareholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required under this Item is incagied by reference from our definitive proxy stagemnto be filed relating to o
2014 annual meeting of shareholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNER S AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required under this Item is incagied by reference from our definitive proxy stagemto be filed relating to o
2014 annual meeting of shareholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required under this Item is incagied by reference from our definitive proxy stagemnto be filed relating to o
2014 annual meeting of shareholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required under this Item is incagied by reference from our definitive proxy stagemnto be filed relating to o
2014 annual meeting of shareholders.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S
€) Financial Statements and Financial Statements Scheks
(1) The following financial statements of the Compay are filed as a part of this Report:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,£012012
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssjlfor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&eysity for the years ended December 31, 2013 ai@ 2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeated December 31, 2013 and 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
All schedules for which provision is made in thepléigable account regulation of the Securities anahang:
Commission are either not required under the rélatstructions, are inapplicable or the requirebrimation is included elsewhere in
Consolidated Financial Statements and incorporateein by reference.
(b) Exhibits

The exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regations S-K are listed in the Index to the Exhibits.
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Index To Financial Statements and Financial Statenrg Schedules (Item 15(a)(1) of Part 1V)

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Financial Statement
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&t42012
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssjLfor the years ended December 31, 2013 and
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013 aid .
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaailed December 31, 2013 and 2
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Asuiféw®oe, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Asure Software, Inc. as of DecembgP@13 and 2012, and the rele
consolidated statements of comprehensive inconss)(lehanges in stockholdeexjuity, and cash flows for each of the two yearsha
period ended December 31, 2013. These financis#¢ments are the responsibility of the Companyianagement. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on these financial statemerstschan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet anidibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimdugcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait afidhe Companys internal control over financial reporting. Ourdés includes
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion onetffiectiveness of the Compasyinternal control over financial reporting. Acciogly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnixiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusuts and disclosures in the finan
statements, assessing the accounting principles aisd significant estimates made by management,ezatliating the overall financ
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedig, ¢onsolidated financial position of As
Software, Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012, eddnsolidated results of its operations andashdlows for each of the two years in
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity wit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Austin, Texas
March 27, 2014
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ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31 December 31

2013 2012
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 3,93t $ 2,17
Restricted cas 40C 25C
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubgittounts of $168 and $182 at December 31, 2C
and December 31, 2012, respectiv 3,90z 3,04(
Inventory 77 26¢€
Notes receivabl 9 19
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,33¢ 1,49
Total current assets 9,66( 7,24¢
Property and equipment, r 1,23: 1,15¢
Goodwill 15,00¢ 15,52¢
Intangible assets, n 9,67¢ 12,17¢
Other assets 38 41
Total assets $ 3561 $ 36,14¢
Liabilities and stockholde’ equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of notes payat $ 4,30¢ $ 3,45(
Accounts payabl 1,66¢ 2,71
Accrued compensation and bene 4732 78
Other accrued liabilitie 98¢ 70€
Deferred revenue 10,05¢ 9,684
Total current liabilities 17,49 16,63:
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred revenu 75¢ 19¢
Notes payab- related party - 80C
Notes payabli 12,69¢ 15,88
Other liabilities 444 471
Total long-term liabilities 13,90 17,351
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 1,500 shares dréth none issued or outstand - -
Common stock, $.01 par value; 11,000 shares aatrairs,353 and 5,644 shares issued,

5,969 and 5,260 shares outstanding at Decegih@013 and December 31, 20respectively 63 56
Treasury stock at cost, 384 shares at Decemb&@03B, and December 31, 20 (5,019 (5,019
Additional paic-in capital 278,15¢ 274,44!
Accumulated defici (268,889 (267,22%)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (104) (102)

Total stockholders’ equity 4,217 2,16(
$ 35,61t $ 36,14¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sladag d

Revenue:
Cost of sales

Gross Margin

Operating Expenses
Selling, general and administrati
Research and developm:
Amortization of intangible assets

Total Operating Expense:
Income (Loss) From Operations

Other Income (Loss)
Interest incom:
Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of as:
Loss on debt conversic
Foreign currency translation gain (lo
Interest expense and ott
Interest expense — amortization of OID and dgive mark-to-market

Total other income (loss), ne

Loss From Operations before Income Taxe
Income tax provision

Net Loss

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Foreign currency gain (loss)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Basic and Diluted Net Loss Per Shar
Basic
Diluted
Weighted Average Basic and Diluted Share
Basic
Diluted

FOR THE
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED
DECEMBER 31,

2013 2012
$ 25,47 $ 19,96¢
6,42¢ 4,57:

19,04¢ 15,39:

13,25: 11,80:

2,83¢ 2,37¢

2,18( 1,72¢

18,26’ 15,90¢

782 (51%)

49 3

72 (28)

- (19€)

(24) 27

(1,947 (1,169

(481) (815)

(2,327) (2,239

(1,545) (2,747

(117) (28E)

$ (1,667 $ (3,037)
0 2

$ (1,66) $ (3,00)
$ (0.29) $ (0.60)
$ (029 $ (0.60)
5,661,00 5,048,00
5,661,00 5,048,00

The accompanying notes are an integral part afetltensolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31,
2011

Share based
compensatiol

Stock issued upon
option exercist
Issuance of stock up
debt conversiol
Issuance of stock up
acquisition

Net loss

Other comprehensive
income

BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31,
2012

Share based
compensatiol

Stock issued upon
option exercist
Issuance of stock up
conversion of
convertible deb
Issuance of stock up
private offering, net ¢
offering costs

Net loss

Other comprehensive
income (loss)
BALANCE AT
DECEMBER 31,
2013

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands)

Other
Common Common Additional Comprehensive Total
Stock Stock Treasury Paid-in Accumulated Income Stockholder¢
Outstanding Amount Stock Capital Deficit (Loss) Equity
4,63C $ 50 $ (5,017 $ 271,34¢ $ (264,190 $ (12¢) $ 2,06¢
88 88
30 20 2C
34t 3 2,24¢ 2,241
25¢ 3 744 747
(3,039 (3,039
26 2€
526( $ 56 $ (5,019 $ 274,44 $ (267,22) $ (1029) $ 2,16(
16C 16C
17 35 35
30 93 93
662 7 3,42¢ 3,43:
(1,662 (1,662
&) 2
596¢ $ 63 $ (5,017 $ 278,15¢ $ (268,88) $ (109 $ 4,21

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottbeasolidated financial statements.
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ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piextiby operation:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for doubtful accoun
Sharebased compensatic
Interest income on settleme
(Gain) loss on sale/disposal of ass
Amortization of OID and derivative me-to-market
Gain on debt payo!
Loss on debt conversic
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other |-term obligations
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net purchases of property and equiprr
Purchases of intangible ass
Collection of note receivab
Acquisitions net of cash acquired

Net cash used in investing actiés

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from notes payal
Payments on notes payal
Payments on conversion of subordinated notes pa
Payments on line of crec
Payments on capital leas
Debt financing fee
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie
Effect of foreign exchange rate:

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake
Cash and equivalents at beginning of perio

Cash and equivalents at end of perio

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Cash paid for
Interest

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activitie
Conversion of subordinated convertible notes payabkequity
Issuance of common stock upon acquisi

FOR THE
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,

2013 2012
(1,669 $ (3,032
2,947 2,29t

37 17¢
16C 88
(49) -
(72) 28
481 81t
(98) -

- 1¢
(150) (250)
(89¢) 1,09t
177 (150)
49t (229)
(1,009) 692
737 14C

92| 94(

2,02t 2,80¢

(389) (904)

(62) (35)

10 77

- (9,800)

(@3) (10,97)

4,00( 14,50(

(6,880 (3,83)

- (222)
- (500)

(89) (33

(330) (680)

3,43¢ -

35 20
171 9,25.

1 27

1,761 1,11(

2,177 1,067

3,93t $ 2,171

1,461 $ 797

¢ 2,24
- 747

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth or otherwise noted)

NOTE 1 - THE COMPANY

Asure Software, Inc., a Delaware corporation inooaped in 1985, provides wdiased workforce management solutions that e
organizations to manage their office environmestavell as their human resource and payroll procesffectively and efficiently. Asu
develops, markets, sells and supports its offerimgddwide through its principal office in Austifexas and through additional offices
Warwick, Rhode Island; Framingham, Massachusetterse City, Michigan and Staines, United Kingdom.
NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Asure has prepared its consolidated financial states in accordance with U.S. generally acceptedwading principles and h
included the accounts of its wholly owned subsid@&r We have eliminated all significant intercompanansactions and balances
consolidation. Asure has made certain reclassificatto the prior yeas' financial statements to conform to the curremtr ygesentation. /
discussed in Note 8- Stockholders’ Equity, Asure hdjusted all prior periods to reflect its 3-foistock split as if it had occurred at
earliest date presented in these financial statesnen

SEGMENTS

The chief operating decision maker is Asure’s Cliirécutive Officer who reviews financial informatigpresented on a company-
wide basis. Accordingly, in accordance with Finahéccounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accountiggandards Codification (“ASQ”
280, Asure determined that it has a single repgiiEgment and operating unit structure.

USE OF ESTIMATES

Preparation of the consolidated financial statemiéntconformity with U.S. generally accepted acdogn principles require
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenzitthe reported amounts of the assets and iligsiland disclosure of contingent as
and liabilities at the date of the financial stadents and the reported amounts of revenues and sapeturing the reporting period. Th
estimates are subjective in nature and involve juelgs that affect the reported amounts of assetdiailities, the disclosure of conting:
assets and liabilities at fiscal year end and #monted amounts of revenues and expenses durinfjstted year. The more significe
estimates made by management include the valualiowance for the gross deferred tax assets, ubefid of fixed assets, the determina
of the fair value of its londived assets, and the fair value of assets acquret liabilities assumed during acquisitions. Asheses it
estimates on historical experience and on varidher@assumptions its management believes reasonabtée the given circumstances. Tt
estimates could be materially different under défe conditions and assumptions. Additionally, #wual amounts could differ from 1
estimates made. Management periodically evaluatisates used in the preparation of the finandaksents for continued reasonabler
Asure makes appropriate adjustments, if any, te#tienates used prospectively based upon suchdpegwealuation.

CONTINGENCIES

In December 2012, we demanded a purchase priostadint from PeopleCube Holding B.V. and MeetingkdtaHolding B.V., th
sellers of the capital stock of Meeting MaketJrited States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psezhén July 2012, based on matters
discovered after closing. Both parties agreedHerpostelosing adjustment to be resolved by an independecduntant consistent with -
purchase agreement. In January 2013, we fileciimmdh federal court in Texas seeking to compeldbkers to comply with the workii
capital adjustment process. The sellers simultasigdiled a claim in the state court of Massachissalleging that we did not comply w
the working capital adjustment process. Our chaias amended in April 2013 to add contractual indéoation claims for the sellerdireacl
of warranties and representations made in the pseclagreement. In May 2013, the sellers amended dhiginal complaint to allec
misrepresentations and omissions by us in connetith the purchase transaction. The sellers seelinspecified amount of damages
the trebling of such damages once calculated. We filed a counterclaim in Massachusetts for caitral indemnification claims for tl
sellers’ breach of their warranties and represemsit
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth or otherwise noted)

In September 2013, we reached an agreement (b@sedtiie determination by the independent accountargettle our purcha
price post-closing adjustment dispute with theessell The parties agreed to a pdsising adjustment due to us with accrued intesé$540
The parties agreed to reduce the original $3,00€rd=l purchase payment by the pdsising adjustment amount. This also had the eft
reducing our longerm debt by a like amount. The remaining defepethase price balance was $2,460. The partiesagie®ed to dismi:
the litigation and claims in Texas in favor of colidating all_remaining disputes in the Massachusetts state.court

In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sstttdaims and dismiss all pending litigation withe sellers of PeopleCu
Under the settlement agreement, the parties agoegidmiss the litigation and settle the remairtdadance due of $2,460 on the Subordin
Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquisition Note for @1, Beparately, our insurance carrier agreed toysa$500 in conjunction with t
settlement. With the insurance proceeds and affeetting any related litigation costs incurred2@14, we expect to record a net gai
approximately $1,000 on the settlement in the fitsrter of 2014.

Finally, as part of the original purchase pricéha PeopleCube acquisition, we issued 255,000 studireur common stock subjec
a lockup of 125,000 shares expiring in June 2018 180,000 shares expiring in June 2014. Thisesaht also removed the lockup for
remaining 130,000 shares.

Asure was also the defendant or plaintiff in vasi@aetions that arose in the normal course of basinks of December 31, 2013,
believe none of the pending legal proceedings tichwve are a party are material to us.

LIQUIDITY

In April 2013, The NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASDAQMotified us that we had failed to maintain a minfmmarket value of liste
securities (“MVLS”) of $35,000 over the previous 30 consecutive busimiays as required by The NASDAQ Capital Marketfegh in
Listing Rule 5550(b)(2). NASDAQ also advised ustiletter that we did not meet the requiremendenmNASDAQ Marketplace Rule 5550
(b)(1), which requires maintenance of $2,500 oftkiolders’ equity, and Rule 5550(b)(3), which requires netome from continuin
operations of $500 or more in 2012 or in two of e years 2010, 2011 and 201hder Rule 5550, we could regain compliance andd
the potential for delisting of our common stockdatisfying any one of the minimum MVLS test, thenmium equity test or the minimum |
income test. In order to meet the minimum equitureement, we increased stockholdexguity by selling 662,000 shares for net proced
$3,400 in May 2013In August 2013, NASDAQ notified us that since thaywW2013 sale of securities, which was at a disctuthe the
current market price, included certain officers atigbctors, the private placement required shadsroapproval under Listing Rule 5635
(c).We held a special meeting held in Septembe32@tlwhich our stockholders voted to ratify thidesaf shares to our officers ¢
directors. In October 2013, we received notificatirom NASDAQ that we regained compliance withting Rules 5635(c) and 5550(b).

As of December 31, 2013, Asuseprincipal source of liquidity consisted of $3,988current cash and cash equivalents as w
future cash generated from operations. Cash astul equivalents were $2,177 at December 31, 2012b#lieve that we have and/or v
generate sufficient cash for our short- and lterga needs, including meeting the requirementsuofamnended Notes Payable, and the re
debt covenant requirements. We are continuing doae expenses as a percentage of revenue and #yustilize our cash balances in
short-term to reduce longrm costs. Based on current internal projectioves believe that we currently have and/or will gaersufficien
cash for our operational needs, including any meguiebt payments, for at least the next twelvethwon

Management is focused on growing our existing pebaffering as well as our customer base to ine@eas recurring revenues.
are also exploring additional strategic acquisgigmthe near future, although we have no agreesrtennake any acquisition at this time.
would fund any acquisitions with equity, availabbesh, future cash from operations, or debt frorsidatsources.

We cannot assure that we can grow our cash balandigsit our cash consumption and thus maintaificgent cash balances for ¢
planned operations or future acquisitions. Futwsness demands may lead to cash utilization aldeyreater than recently experienced.
may need to raise additional capital in the futitewever, we cannot assure that we will be ableatse additional capital on accept:
terms, or at all. Subject to the foregoing, manag@nbelieves that we have sufficient capital agdidity to fund and cultivate the growth
our current and future operations for at leastrye 12 months and to maintain compliance withtédms of our debt agreements and rel
covenants or to obtain compliance through debtyimesats made with the available cash on hand ocipated for receipt in the ordin:
course of operations.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposithighly liquid investments with an original matyrivf three months or less wr
purchased.

RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash represents a certificate of depgwdd in a cash collateral account as required PiMalgan Chase Bank N.
(“Bank™), to secure our obligations under our ctewdird obligations with the Bank.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We apply the authoritative guidance on fair valusasurements for financial assets and liabilities #ne measured at fair value ¢
recurring basis, and ndimancial assets and liabilities such as goodivilangible assets and property and equipment teatnaasured at f:
value on a non-recurring basis.

DERIVATIVE

Our convertible notes payable contained an embeddsduative instrument related to the conversiostdes that we accounted
separately. We rmeasured the fair values of these instruments doh eeporting period and recorded a gain or losghe change in fe
value. The embedded derivative was settled dur@i®2See Note BNotes Payable and Derivative Liability for furthaetails. No derivativ
feature remains at December 31, 2013.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

We grant credit to customers in the ordinary cowfsbusiness. We limit concentrations of credik niglated to our trade accou
receivable due to our large number of customerduding thirdparty resellers, and their dispersion across seiredastries and geograpl
areas. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of customers and maintain reserves for potentialitctedses. We require advan
payments or secured transactions when deemed aegess

Asure reviews potential customers’ credit ratimggaluate customerability to pay an obligation within the paymentrteiwhich i
usually net thirty days. If we receive reasonassurance of payment and know of no barriers talllegnforce the payment obligation,
may extend credit to customers. We place accoumt&Coedit Hold” if a placed order exceeds the credit limit or seah&ircumstance
warrant. We follow our credit policy consistendlgd routinely monitor our delinquent accounts fatications of uncollectability.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Asure maintains an allowance for doubtful accoattan amount we estimate sufficient to provide adég protection against los
resulting from extending credit to our customerge base this allowance, in the aggregate, on kgsiocollection experience, age
receivables and general economic conditions. Tlegvahce for doubtful accounts also considers thefer specific customer reserves b:
on the customer’s payment experience, credit-woess and age of receivable balances. Asurad debts have not been material and
been within management expectations.

The following table summarizes the annual changesir allowance for doubtful accounts:

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 19
Provision for doubtful accounts receiva 17¢
Write-off of uncollectible accounts receivable (16)
Balance at December 31, 2( $ 182
Provision for doubtful accounts receiva 37
Write-off of uncollectible accounts receivable o)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 16€
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INVENTORY

Inventory consists of finished goods and is statietthe lower of cost or market. Inventory inclugeschased LCD panels and a
range of biometric and card recognition clocks thatsell as part of our workforce and workspaceagament solutions. We routinely as:
our on-hand inventory for timely identification anteasurement of obsolete, slow-moving or othenimg®ired inventory.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

We record property and equipment, including sofewdurniture and equipment, at cost less accunulildépreciation. We recc
depreciation using the straiglirte method over the estimated economic usefuslivfethe assets, which range from two to five ye&@wopert
and equipment also includes leasehold improvemamdscapital leases, which we record at cost lessnaglated amortization. We rec
amortization of leasehold improvements and cajg@bes using the straiglite method over the shorter of the lease termver the life o
the respective assets, as applicable. We recogains or losses related to retirements or dispositf fixed assets in the period incurred.
expense repair and maintenance costs as incurregoéibodically review the estimated economic uskfels of our property and equipm
and make adjustments, if necessary, accordingettatest information available.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Asure has accounted for our acquisitions usingattwpuisition method of accounting based on ASC 8@usiness Combinations
which requires recognition and measurement ofdalhfifiable assets acquired and liabilities assuatetieir full fair value as of the date
obtain control. We have determined the fair valtiassets acquired and liabilities assumed based apoestimates of the fair values of as
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisstiddoodwill represents the excess of the purchase pver the fair value of the net tang
and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Whidehave used our best estimates and assumptionsasure the fair value of the identific
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at theisiiqn date, our estimates are inherently uncertaid subject to refinement. As a re:
during the measurement period, not to exceed oaefy@m the date of acquisition, any changes ineg$tamated fair values of the net as
recorded for the acquisitions will result in anwsdjnent to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the meament period or final determinatior
the values of assets acquired or liabilities asslyméhichever comes first, we record any subseqaeljustments to our consolida
statements of comprehensive income (loss).

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase pria business combination over the fair valupatftangible and intangible as:
acquired in a business combination. We test goddaviimpairment on an annual basis in the fouitlcdl quarter of each year, and betw
annual tests if indicators of potential impairmerist, using a fair-valueased approach. There has been no impairment afngibdor the
periods presented. See Notes 4 and 5 for additiof@mation regarding goodwill. We amortize intélnlg assets not considered to hav
indefinite useful life using the straighite method over their estimated period of beneftijch generally ranges from one to ten years.
reporting period, we evaluate the estimated remgimiseful life of intangible assets and assesshehetvents or changes in circumsta
warrant a revision to the remaining period of afzation or indicate that impairment exists. We hawegidentified any impairments of finite-
lived intangible assets during any of the periodssented. See Note 5Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets for additiomaflormatior
regarding intangible assets.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG -LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with ASC 350, Asure reviews and eatekiour londived assets for impairment whenever events or gésrir
circumstances indicate that we may not recover tietibook value. When such factors and circuntgtsuexist, including those noted ab
we compare the assetsirrying amounts against the estimated undiscourdst flows to be generated by those assets ogerestimate
useful lives. If the carrying amounts are grettian the undiscounted cash flows, we estimatedinevélues of those assets by discountiny
projected cash flows. We record any excess ofctireying amounts over the fair values as impairmeéntthat fiscal period. We he
identified no impairment of long-lived assets dgramy of the periods presented.
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ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNTS

We recognize original issue discounts, when incuoe the issuance of debt, as a reduction of theeiguloan obligations that \
amortize to interest expense over the life of #lated indebtedness using the effective interdstmeethod. We record the amortizatiol
interest expense — amortization of OID and deneainhark-tomarket in the Consolidated Statements of Comprébefiscome (Loss). At tt
time of any repurchases or retirements of relatgat,dve will write off the remaining amount of r@tginal issue discounts and include tt
in the calculation of gain/(loss) on retirementhe consolidated statements of comprehensive in¢toss).

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Our revenues consist of software-as-a-service @Jaafferings, timebased software subscriptions, and perpetual sadtieens
sale arrangements that also, typically, includelWvare, maintenance/support and professional serelements. We recognize revenue v
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,etiglhas occurred, the fee is fixed or determinabig collectability is probable. Software
and software-related elements are recognized inrdance with ASC 985-605Software Revenue Recognition Nonsoftware revent
elements are recognized in accordance with ASC2f0Bevenue Recognition Multiple-Element Arrangemer8sice we currently offer o
software solutions under either a perpetual licetisee-based subscription or SaaS model, revenue recogrithing varies based on wh
form of software rights the customer purchases.

SaaS arrangements and tilmeesed software subscriptions typically have ariainterm ranging from one to three years anc
renewable on an annual basis. A typical SaaS geraant will also include hardware, setup and impgletation services. We allocate
value of the SaaS arrangement to each separat®fuaitcounting based on vendor-specific objectivielence (“VSOE")of selling price
when it exists, thirgearty evidence of selling price for like servicasbest estimated selling price. Revenue allocttetthe SaaS/softwe
subscription element is recognized ratably overntbecancellable term of the SaaS/subscription serRewenue allocated to other unit:
accounting included in the arrangement are recegres outlined in the paragraphs below.

Perpetual software licenses are typically sold inltiple-element arrangements that include hardware, maintsisupport ai
professional services. Software license revendetgrmined under the residual method, are generatiggnized on the date the produt
delivered to the customer if VSOE of fair valuestgifor all undelivered elements of the softwararmgement. If VSOE of fair value does
exist for an undelivered element, the entire saféwarrangement is deferred and recognized ratavigr the remaining nooancellabl
maintenance term after all other undelivered elambave been delivered. We base VSOE of fair vedueur maintenance, training &
installation services on the prices charged fosghservices when sold separately. Revenue altb¢atbardware, maintenance and sen
elements included in the arrangement are recogmigexlitiined below.

Hardware devices sold to customers (typically tioleck, LCD panel and other peripheral devices) ao¢ essential to tl
functionality of the software and as such are &@ads norsoftware elements for revenue recognition purpostsdware revenue
recognized when title passes to the customer, djlpithe date the hardware is shipped. If hardvissold under a HaaS arrangement, tit
the hardware remains with Asure and hardware usaggnue is recognized ratably over the ancellable term of the hardware ser
delivery, typically one year.

Our professional services offerings which typicafiglude data migration, set up, training, and ienpéntation services are also
essential to the functionality of our productsttaisd parties or customers themselves can perftlsd services. Set up and implement
services typically occur at the start of the sofevarrangement while certain other professionalises, depending on the nature of
services and customer requirements, may occur aewsnths later. Professional services perfornmdaf fixed fee can be reasone
estimated and are recognized on a proportionalopaence basis. Revenue for professional servicgagaments billed on a time ¢
materials basis are recognized as the servicedetikered. Revenues on all other professionalisesvengagements are recognized upo
earlier of the completion of the services delivégalr the expiration of the customer’s right toewe the service.

Maintenance/support revenues are recognized rataihgr the norcancellable term of the support agreement. |
maintenance/support terms are typically one toetlgears and are renewable on an annual basis.

We do not recognize revenue for agreements wititsigf return, refundable fees, cancellation rigintacceptance clauses until tr
return, refund or cancellation rights have expioedicceptance has occurred. Our arrangementsreg#ilers do not allow for any rights
return.

Deferred revenue includes amounts received fromomexs in excess of revenue recognized, and is xsetp of deferre
maintenance, service and other revenue. We remegéferred revenues when we complete the service oxer the terms of t
arrangements, primarily ranging from one to threars.

ADVERTISING COSTS

We expense advertising costs as we incur them.e#iding expenses were $0 and $16 for 2013 and,28%pectively. We record
these expenses as part of sales and marketingsegen our Consolidated Statements of Comprehehsivene (Loss)
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LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Asure recognizes its lease obligations with schetlvént increases over the term of the lease traiglstline basis. Accordingly, w
charge the total amount of base rentals over tine & our leases to expense on a straliglet-method, recording the amount of rental exp
in excess of lease payments as a deferred rerilitjialhs of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we haddeferred rent liabilities. We al
recognize capital lease obligations and recordutiderlying assets and liabilities on our ConsoédaBalance Sheets. As of Decembel
2013 and 2012, Asure had $399 and $389 in capiakl obligations, respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

We measure the financial statements of our forsigssidiaries using the local currency as the foneti currency. Accordingly, v
translate the assets and liabilities of these goreiubsidiaries at current exchange rates at ealeinde sheet date. We record transl:
adjustments arising from the translation of neets$ocated outside of the United States into Wni¢ates dollars in accumulated o
comprehensive income (loss) as a separate compohstutckholdersequity. We translate income and expenses fromdiredgn subsidiarie
using monthly average exchange rates. We includggaias and losses resulting from foreign exchatngesactions in other income ¢
expenses, which were not significant in 2013 antk20

INCOME TAXES

We account for income taxes using the liability noet under FASB ASC 740Accounting for Income Taxes,Which require
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilifmsthe expected future tax consequences of evedisded in the financial statements. Ur
the liability method, we determine deferred taxetssand liabilities based on the difference betwbenfinancial statement and tax base
assets and liabilities using enacted tax rate$f@ttein the years in which we expect the differento reverse. We reduce deferred tax
by a valuation allowance when it is more likelyrth#ot that we will not realize some component bohthe deferred tax assets.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

We adopted Statement ASC 718 effective August @520sing the modified prospective application $siion method. The modifi
prospective application method requires that congsarecognize compensation expense on staslked payment awards that are modi
repurchased or cancelled after the effective défe. estimate the fair value of each award grantewh four stock option plans at the dat
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mofelring 2013 and 2012, we granted 216,000 and P60s@bck options, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, we expect to recognizé® £8unrecognized compensation costs related tevested option grants o\
the course of the following three years.

We issued 17,000 shares of common stock relatexkeecises of stock options granted from our stqaoa plans for 2013 al
30,000 shares in 2012.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”)issued guidance on disclosures of additional infdrom witr
respect to changes in accumulated other compratemsiome (“AOCI”) balances by component and significant items reiegsout of
AOCI. Expanded disclosures for presentation of geanin AOCI involve disaggregating the total chamjecach component of ott
comprehensive income as well as presenting seafateeach such component the portion of the clkaingAOCI related to (1) amoul
reclassified into income and (2) currgrgriod other comprehensive income. Additionallyr &amounts reclassified into income, we
required to disclose in one location, based upeh specific AOCI component, the amounts impactirdividual income statement line iter
We are required to disclose the income statemeatitém impacts only for components of AOCI redfass into income in their entirety. V
would make the disclosures required with respedntome statement line item impacts in either tlotes to the consolidated finan:
statements or parenthetically on the face of tharftial statements. For us, this Accounting Statslbipdate was effective beginning Jan
1, 2013. Because this standard only impacts prasentand disclosure requirements, its adoptionraitlhave a material impact on
consolidated results of operations or financialditbon.
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In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standalpdate No. 2013-11 (ASU 20113t), which updated the guidance in ASC T
740, Income Taxes. The amendments in ASU 201 &enerally provide guidance for the presentadiomnrecognized tax benefits when a
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossadax credit carryforward exists at the reportilage. The guidance requires an unrecog!
tax benefit to be presented as a decrease in gelfiax asset where a net operating loss, a sitakaloss, or a tax credit carryforward ex
and certain criteria are met. This guidance beoeaffieetive for us as of January 1, 2014 and is &best with our present practice.

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Effective August 1, 2008, Asure adopted ASC 8E@jr Value Measurements and DisclosurdsSC 820 defines fair valu
establishes a framework for measuring fair valu&Ji8. generally accepted accounting principles exghnds disclosures about fair v

measurements.

ASC 820 establishes a thrger fair value hierarchy, which is based on thkalglity of the inputs used in measuring fair ved
These tiers include:

Level 1; Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities;

Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assetkabilities; quoted prices in markets that ac active fol
identical or similar assets or liabilities; and rel-driven valuations whose significant inputs are obealele; anc

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@market activity and that are significant to taie value of
the assets or liabilitie:

The following table presents the fair value hiehgrdor our financial assets measured at fair valnea recurring basis as
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively:

Fair Value Measure at December 31, 201

Total Quoted Significant

Carrying Prices Other Significant

Value at in Active Observable Unobservable
December 31 Market Inputs Inputs

Description 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,93t $ 3,93t $ - $ =
Restricted cash- certificate of deposit $ 40C $ - $ 40C $ -
Total $ 4,33¢ $ 3,93t $ 40C $ =

Fair Value Measure at December 31, 201

Total Quoted Significant

Carrying Prices Other Significant

Value at in Active Observable Unobservable
December 31, Market Inputs Inputs

Description 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,171 $ 2,171 $ - 3 =
Restricted cash- certificate of deposit 25C $ - $ 25C $ -
Total $ 2427 $ 2,177 $ 25C $ =

For our level 2 asset, the fair value is basedchéorination obtained from our third party serviceyader and approximates carrying
value.
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Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities with carrying amisuapproximating fair value include cash, tradeoaots receivable, accou
payable, accrued expenses and other current tiabiliThe carrying amount of these financial asseid liabilities approximates fair va
because of their short maturities.

Our line of credit and notes payable, includingrent portion, as of December 31, 2013, had a cagryalue of $17,006. Tt
carrying value approximates fair value. The fatue is based on interest rates that are currentjlable to us for issuance of debt \
similar terms and remaining maturities.

NOTE 4 - ACQUISITIONS
2012 Acquisition

In July 2012, Asure acquired the capital stock afetihg Maker — United States, Inc., doing busirsesé“ dba”)PeopleCube, for
combination of cash and Asure common stock. The 2@tjuisition of PeopleCube gave Asure a produettihat includes software to as
customers in driving integrated facility managemenhtoffices, conference rooms, video conferenciagents and training, alternat
workspaces and lobby use.

The purchase price was composed of $9,800 in cadlject to a postlosing working capital adjustment, (ii) 255,005 of oL
common stock, par value $0.01 per share, represpjust under five percent of Asusedutstanding shares and valued at $2.94 per she
(iii) an additional $3,000 note from us due on @eto31, 2014, subject to offset of any amounts olethe seller under the indemnificat
provisions of the stock purchase agreement. The was adjusted to a fair value of $2,404 at the dapurchase based on our increme
borrowing rate. We recorded the note at fair valsieg a discount rate of 10%, which resulted im@aginal issue discount of $622, which v
accrete up the note to its aggregate principal arnawver the course of the life of the loan using dfffective interest method. Details regar
the financing of the acquisition are describedha below Notes Payable table. Transactions costshie acquisition were $905 and
expensed them as incurred.

As discussed above, in December 2012, we demandgrdchase price adjustment from PeopleCube Hol@ing and Meetin
Maker Holding B.V., the sellers of the capital $af Meeting Maker -United States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psezhan July 201
based on matters we discovered after closinghdrihird quarter of 2013, we reached an agreernoesettle our postiosing working capiti
adjustment dispute. The parties agreed to a @osthg working capital adjustment due to us of &4®ith accrued interest of $44, total
$540. The parties agreed to reduce the origindlGkBdeferred purchase payment by the ptsting adjustment amount of $540. This
had the effect of reducing our lotgrm debt by a like amount and $496 was deducia four goodwill balance. The remaining defe
purchase price balance under the Subordinated Waigable: Peoplecube Acquisition Note then beca2n6$.

The following is the purchase price allocation fbe acquisition of PeopleCub®@/e expect to continue to deduct goodwill ari
from this acquisition for tax purposes over 15 ge&lve recorded the transaction using the acquisitiethod of accounting and recogni
assets and liabilities assumed at their fair vasief the date of acquisition. The $7,445 of iniblegassets subject to amortization, consi
$5,242 allocated to Customer Relationships, $1,84Developed Technology, $338 for Trade Names a8 fdr a Covenant not-to-
compete. We estimated the fair value of the CustoRelationships using the excess earnings methéatm of the income approach. '
discounted cash flow projections using a rate 06%6 which reflects the risk associated with thrngible asset related to the other a:
and the overall business operations to us. We astunthe fair value of the Developed Technology @ratle Names using the relief fr
royalty method based upon a 5% royalty rate. Wienased the value of the Covenant notstmmpete using a damages calculation, whict
form of the income approach.

Consideration paid:

Cash per stock purchase agreen $ 10,00(
Working capital adjustments (200)
Total cash pait 9,80(
Fair value of note payab 2,40¢
Fair value of stock issued 747
Total consideration paid 12,95:
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We based the allocations on fair values at the dfadéequisition:

PeopleCube

Assets Acquired

Accounts receivabl 2,60¢
Fixed asset 117
Other asset 124
Goodwill 9,27¢
Intangibles 7,44¢
Total assets acquired 19,57(
Liabilities assumed

Accounts payabl (677)
Accrued other liabilitie (24%)
Subordinated notes payal (1,619
Deferred revenue (4,089
Total liabilities assumed (6,61¢)
Net assets acquirec $ 12,95:

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The following unaudited summary of pro forma condairresults of operation for 2012 gives effect ® alequisition of PeopleCu
as if we had completed it on January 1, 2012. phisforma summary does not reflect any operatirfigiehcies, cost savings or revel
enhancements that we may achieve by combining coiegpan addition, we have not reflected certain-recurring expenses, such as |
expenses and other transactions expenses forgtel® months after the acquisition, in the praxfarsummary. We present this pro fo
summary for informational purposes only and it @ necessarily indicative of what our actual resolt operations would have been hac

acquisition taken place as January 1, 2012, nibindicative of future consolidated results of ogt@ns.

FOR THE
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
2012

Revenue: 24,42

Net (loss) (3,900

Net (loss) per common sha

Basic and dilute: (0.74

Weighted average shares outstand

Basic and diluter 5,26(

2011 Acquisitions

During 2011, we made two acquisitions for approxeha $10,400 in aggregate purchase consideratioa. fuided the 20:

acquisitions from available cash on hand, long-tdeit and promissory notes issued to the sellers.

In October 2011, we purchased (through a whoWlyred subsidiary) substantially all of the assets assumed certain liabilities
ADI Time, LLC relating to its time and attendanadte/are and management services business. Thbaserice for the assets consiste
$6,000 in cash and a $1,095 promissory note fronsobsidiary. This note bore interest at an anratal of 0.16%, was due October 2014
was guaranteed by us. In October 2013, we paidnibts in full, less a 5% discount for early paymaie made a principal payment

$245,000 in July 2012 and a final payment of $80Q.,& October 2013 in full payment of this note.

F-14




Table of Content

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth or otherwise noted)

In December 2011, we purchased (through a whmliped subsidiary) substantially all of the assats @ssumed certain liabilities
WG Ross Corp., dba Legiant, relating to its cloothputing time and attendance software and manageseevices. The purchase price
the assets was $4,000, consisting of approxim&&kfy11 in cash and three subordinated promissassrin the aggregate principal amour
approximately $2,489, as adjusted pursuant toeheg of the asset purchase agreement. One of tineigsory notes was for an aggre!
principal amount of $250, bore interest at an ahrata of 0.20%, matured on February 1, 2012 ansl pad in full. The second promiss
note was for an aggregate principal amount of apprately $479 and bore interest at an annual refe0®%. The third promissory note v
for an aggregate principal amount of approxima$dly761 and bore interest at an annual rate of 0.200&eptember 2013, we entered in
Third Amendment to our Loan Agreement with Deerpktmding, LP. Under this amendment, we borrowedadditional $2,500 |
September 2013. We used a portion of the net pdsciepay the two remaining notes totaling $1,89&se loans were due in October 20

NOTE 5 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Asure accounted for its historical acquisitionsaocordance with ASC 8038usiness CombinationsWe recorded the amot
exceeding the fair value of net assets acquirddeatlate of acquisition as goodwill. We recordddngible assets apart from goodwill if
assets had contractual or other legal rights ¢hdfassets could be separated and sold, transféicedsed, rented or exchanged. Assire’
goodwill relates to the acquisitions of ADI and iaag in 2011 and the acquisition of PeopleCubeuly 2012.

In accordance with ASC 35Mntangibles-Goodwill and Othemve review and evaluate our lofiged assets, including intangil
assets with finite lives, for impairment wheneveemts or changes in circumstances indicate thahese not recover their net book value.
test goodwill for impairment on an annual basighe fourth fiscal quarter of each year, and betwammual tests, if indicators of poten
impairment exist, using a fair-value-based approddtere has been no impairment gdodwill for the periods presented. We amo
intangible assets not considered to have an initefirseful life using the straiglite method over their estimated period of beneftjch
generally ranges from one to ten years. Each neygoperiod, we evaluate the estimated remainindulidiée of intangible assets and ass
whether events or changes in circumstances waaragwision to the remaining period of amortizat@rindicate that impairment exists. '
have not identified any impairments of finite-livedangible assets during any of the periods ptesen

As discussed above, in the third quarter of 20X8reached an agreement to settle our purchasepm#telosing adjustment dispu
The parties agreed to a post-closing adjustmentauwes of $496, with accrued interest of $44, totak540. The postiosing adjustment
$496 was deducted from our goodwill balance at&eper 30, 2013.

The following table summarizes the annual changesiir goodwill:

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 6,26¢
Goodwill recognized upon acquisition of Peoplb€ 9,69¢
Adjustments to goodwill (43)

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 15,52¢
Adjustments to goodwill (520

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 15,00¢

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amadizaf our intangible assets as of December 313201 2012 are as follows:

December 31, 201.

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Amortization
Period (in Accumulated
Intangible Asset Years) Gross Amortization Net
Developed Technolog 8.3 $ 3,401 $ (1,429 $ 1,98:
Customer Relationshif 7 12,48: (5,370 7,111
Reseller Relationshir 7 853 (274) 57¢
Trade Name - 65¢ (659) -
Covenant not-to-compett 2 20E (199) 6
7.2 $ 17,608 $ (7,926 $ 9,67¢
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December 31, 201;

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Amortization
Period (in Accumulated
Intangible Asset Years) Gross Amortization Net
Developed Technolog 9 $ 3,42¢ % (1,111 $ 2,313
Customer Relationshif 7 12,47¢ (3,51%) 8,96:
Reseller Relationshi 7 853 (152 701
Trade Name 1 663 (4949) 16¢
Covenant not-to-compete 2 20E (17€) 29
7.2 $ 17,627 $ (5,448 $ 12,17¢

We record amortization expense using the strdightmethod over the estimated economic usefukliokthe intangible assets,
noted above. Amortization expenses were $2,180$4rt26 for 2013 and 2012 respectively, include@perating Expenses. Amortizat
expenses recorded in Cost of Sales were $317 atl {58 2013 and 2012, of which $0 and $102, respelgt related to the acquisitions
those periods.

In August 2013, we entered into a purchase agreetoesell certain customer relationships, develogatinology and trade nan
related to certain intangible assets acquired énptirchase of PeopleCube. The selling price faetmssets was $140 with a gain recogi
of $72.

The following table summarizes the future estirdatmortization expense relating to our intangilsigess as of December 31, 2013:

Calendar Years

2014 $ 2,28t
2015 2,12¢
2016 1,60(
2017 1,58¢
Thereafter 2,08(

$ 9,67¢

NOTE 6 — NOTES PAYABLE

The following table summarizes our outstanding @debof the dates indicated:

Balance as o Balance as o
Stated Interest December December
Notes Payable Maturity Rate 31, 2013 31,2012
Subordinated notes payable:

ADI - Acquisition Note 10/1/2014 0.16% $ - $ 69:
Subordinated notes payable:

Legiant Acquisitior- Note # 2 10/1/2014 5.0% - 18
Subordinated notes payable:

Legiant— Acquisition— Note #3 10/1/2014 0.2(% - 1,51(
Subordinated Convertible Notes Paye— 9% Notes 9/30/2014 9.0% 23¢ 31
Subordinated Notes Payal- 15% Notes 9/30/2014 15.0% - 80!
Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquisil
Note 10/31/2014 10.0% 2,22 2,49
Senior Note Payable 7/01/2016 11.5% 14,54¢ 14,13

Total Notes Payable $ 17,00t $ 20,13

Shor-term notes payab $ 4,30¢ $ 3,45
Long-term notes payabl $ 1269 $ 16,68

F-16




Table of Content

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth or otherwise noted)

The following table summarizes the future principayments related to our outstanding debt, inclydire impact of the amendm
to the Senior Note Payable discussed below:

Year Ended Gross Amount
December 31, 201 $ 4,65¢
December 31, 201 1,85(
December 31, 2016 10,84¢
Gross Notes Payabli $ 17,35:
Unamortized Original Issue Discount $ 347
Total Notes Payable $ 17,00¢

Subordinated Notes Payable: ADI - Acquisition Note

In conjunction with the acquisition of the asseté&bl in October 2011, our whollpwned subsidiary issued a $1,095 note payal
the seller. This note bore interest at an annualof0.16%, had a maturity date of October 1, 28d was guaranteed by us. We recorde
note at fair value using a discount rate of 9%,clhiesulted in an original issue discount of $24#jch will accrete up the note to
aggregate principal amount over the course of ifieedf the loan using the effective interest methéée recognized amortization of
original issue discount of $68 and $68 during 2@h8 2012, respectively. We made a principal payné$245,000 in July 2012 and
balance of $811,000 in October 2013. This note pead in full in October 2013, less a 5% discoumtefarly payment.

Subordinated Notes Payable: Legiant Acquisition

In conjunction with the acquisition of Legiant ireBember 2011, our whollgwned subsidiary issued three separate promissiey
to the seller. We guaranteed all three promissotgs) which are subordinated to our Senior Not@aBlaydiscussed below. The details of ¢
of the notes are as follows:

Legiant Acquisitior- Note #1

Legiant Acquisition Note #1 was for an aggregate principal amount2&0$ bore interest at an annual rate of 0.20% aigined i
February 2012. We paid this note in full in 2012.

Legiant Acquisitior- Note #2

Legiant Acquisition -Note #2 was for the principal amount of $478, bioterest at an annual rate of 5.00% and requiredthy
payments of $10 until June 2012. Asure made a ipahpayment of $235 in July 2012. No further cagbrest or principal was payable u
the maturity date of October 1, 2014. We paid thkafce in full in September 2013, less a 15% distar early payment, in connection w
the additional borrowing under our Senior Note Pégiaas described below.

Legiant Acquisitior- Note #3

Legiant Acquisition Note #3 was for an aggregate principal amountlof &L, bore interest at an annual rate of 0.20%veas du
in a single lump sum on October 1, 2014. We reabtte note at fair value using a discount rate%f Besulting in an original issue disca
of $382, which will accrete up the note to its agate principal amount over the course of thedif¢he loan using the effective inter
method. We paid the balance in full in September320ess a 15% discount for early payment, in cotioe with the additional borrowit
under our Senior Note Payable, as described below.
Subordinated Convertible Notes Payable - 9% Notes

In September 2011, we sold $1,500 of our 9% subatdd convertible notes (“9% Notest) a private placement to accred|
investors to finance the ADI acquisition.

The 9% Notes - As Originally Issued
The 9% Notes pay interest on each of March 31, 30n&eptember 30 and December 31, beginning oerblger 31, 2011, atar.

of 9% per year. The 9% Notes will mature on Septmd®, 2014. The 9% Notes are secured by all obesets, but are subordinated to
obligations under the Senior Note Payable and 5% Motes discussed below.
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Beginning 12 months from the date of issuance, eatb holder may convert the 9% Notes into shafemup common stock at
conversion price of $5.00 per share, subject taisdjents for stock dividends and splits and certdiver events. Additionally, if v
subsequently issue common stock at a price belevthin current conversion price, the conversiooepwill be reset to the greater of $:
per share (the closing price of our common stoclseptember 30, 2011) or such lower price. In trenethat a holder of a 9% Note elect
convert the 9% Note into equity, and we determireg such conversion would jeopardize our fedepaldas carryforward benefits, we n
elect to prepay any or all of such 9% Notes priocanversion, subject to certain limitations, giuachase price equal to the product of
number of shares into which the 9% Note is conbkrtand the volume weighted average closing prizéng the 20 day trading peri
beginning on the 10th day before the conversioitads received by us, multiplied by the PremiunmteRarhe Premium Rate is 1.1 if a hol
notifies us of an intention to convert the 9% Notto equity prior to the date that is 90 days beftie maturity date and 1.5 if si
notification is made within 90 days of the matuuigte. The 9% Notes also contain customary ternaefafult.

We also agreed that if we issue common stock b&®&5 per share, each holder of the 9% Notes aulistg at that time will hay
the right to purchase such holder’s pro rata pontibthe new stock issuance.

The 9% Notes contained embedded derivative instntsneelated to the conversion feature that Asummatted for separately
Asure has reneasured the fair values of these instrumentsaoh eeporting period and recorded a gain or losthf change in fair value.
inception, we valued the conversion feature at $28<ulting in an original issue discount on thevastible debt accreting up the 9% Note
their aggregate principal amount over the coursta@fife of the loan using theffective interest method. We recognized amoiitinadf the
original issue discount of $21 during 2011. We uasédonte Carlo simulation in a risleutral framework to simulate our market capitaic
outcomes, including considerations of our projectedre price volatility, to estimate the fair vahfehe embedded derivative. The fair vi
of the conversion feature was $835 at December2811, with $561 being recorded in the income staténfor the mark-tonarke
impact. This amount of $561 was recorded in irieexpense — amortization of OID and derivative kvtarmarket in our Consolidat
Statements of Comprehensive Income (LosS).

The 9% Notes - Amendments

In March 2012, we amended the terms of the 9% Nmmesiminate the embedded derivative featuresltiaguin a settlement «

extinguishment of the derivative liability. Undenet terms of the amendment, each holder of 9% Noi&s permitted to convert t
outstanding principal balance due there under $htares of our common stock at the conversion miggnally set forth in the 9% Not
($5.00 per share of common stock) on or before Mafg 2012. As consideration for agreeing to émms of the amendment, we made a one
time cash payment in such amount as follows: (1$fr holders of 9% Notes who elected to conveeirt 9% Notes into common stc
prior to March 16, 2012, an amount equal to 80%hefinterest that such holder would have receilsgcolding the 9% Note to maturity &
(i) $11 for holders of 9% Notes who did not eléxtconvert their 9% Notes into common stock prioMarch 16, 2012, an amount equz
3% of the outstanding principal amount of each 9%&eN In each case, the holders of the 9% Notesedgto the removal of the diluti
protection provision to reset the conversion phetow $5.00 per share upon certain issuances of@umon stock below $5.00 per sh:
Holders of approximately $1,150 of the total $1,90@rincipal amount of 9% Notes converted their B&tes to common stock.

The amendment to the 9% Notes eliminated the d@revdiability. Effective on March 10, 2012, we nhonger accounted for t
derivatives on a separate basis. Therefore, wenger remeasure the value of the derivatives after the dment date. The fair value of -
conversion feature was $1,300 at March 10, 201&h $465 recorded in the income statement for theksiamarket impact. We record
this amount in interest expense — amortization I@f @nd derivative mark-torarket in the Consolidated Statements of Compréhetiscome
(Loss). The conversion of the 9% Notes and elinmadf the derivative liability resulted in a losa debt conversion of $198, a reductio
the carrying value of the 9% Notes to $296 at M&th2012 and an increase in additional paid intabpf $2,244 for the issuance of 345,
shares of common stock issued upon conversion.astegnized amortization of the original issue distoaf $21 and $34 during 2013 ¢
2012, respectively.

Mr. Goepel, our Chief Executive Officer, purcha$2D0 of the 9% Notes. Red Oak Fund, LP purchaséd $6the 9% Notes. V
Sandberg, our Chairman, is the controlling membiédRed Oak Partners, LLC, which manages the Red Faid. Both parties subsequel
converted the 9% Notes under the terms of the amentin 2012. At December 31, 2013, we had $238tanding under the 9% Notes v
a September 30, 2014 maturity.
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Subordinated Notes Payable - 15% Notes

In September 2011, we sold $1,700 of our 15% subateld notes (“15% Notesih a private placement to accredited investors.
15% Notes paid interest on each of March 31, Jn&8ptember 30 and December 31, beginning on Deeedi, 2011, at a rate of 15%
year. The 15% Notes had a maturity date of Septer@be 2014. In July 2012, Asure prepaid $900 froracpeds of the Senior Nt
Payable. Mr. Goepel, our Chief Executive Officerigimally purchased $500 of the 15% Notes. Pinmdalnd, LLLP originally purchas
$300 of the 15% Notes. Mr. Sandberg, our Chairnmihe controlling member of Red Oak Partners, Lis@jch owns 50% of Pinnac
Partners, LLC, the general partner of the Pinnkaled, LLLP. Red Oak Partners, LLC is also the ngenaf the Pinnacle Fund, LLLP.\
expensed $115 of fees for this transaction durid@22 The 15% Notes were secured by all of our sas$ett were subordinated to
obligations to the Senior Note Payable discussémhbeThe 15% Notes also contained customary terhaefault. We paid these notes in
in 2013.

Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube Acquishiote

In July 2012, we issued a $3,000 Note to the sell¢éhe PeopleCube stock acquisition. The noteuss @ctober 31, 2014, subjec
offset of any amounts owed by the seller to us utitee indemnification provisions of the stock puash agreement. We recorded the nc
fair value using a discount rate of 10%, which heslin an original issue discount of $622, whichi accrete up the note to its aggre
principal amount over the course of the life of than using the effective interest method. We recefl amortization of the original is¢
discount of $121 during 2012.

In the third quarter of 2013, we reached an agreetoesettle our postlosing working capital adjustment dispute with ple€ubt
Holding B.V. and Meeting Maker Holding B.V., thellses of the capital stock of Meeting MaketJnited States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube).
parties agreed to a podbsing adjustment due to us of $496, with accrinerest of $44, totaling $540. The parties agreededuce th
original $3,000 deferred purchase payment by thet-glosing adjustment amount of $540. This also hadetifiect of reducing our note b
like amount. The remaining deferred purchase polance under the Subordinated Notes Payable: &@opk Acquisition Note beca
$2,460.

In February, 2014, we reached an agreement te sdittlaims and dismiss all pending litigationtwRReopleCube Holding B.V. a
Meeting Maker Holding B.V., the sellers of the dapstock of Meeting Maker — United States, IndgdPeopleCube).Under the settleme
agreement, the parties agreed to dismiss thetlitiyaand we settled the remaining balance due bgf$2,500 on the Subordinated N¢
Payable: PeopleCube Acquisition Note for $1,70@ Sete 14- Subsequent Events.

Senior Note Payable

In July 2012, we and our wholly-owned subsidiagesered into a loan agreement with Deerpath FundiRg aDelaware limite:
partnership, as lender, administrative agent atidtecal agent (“Deerpath”)Jnder the loan agreement, we borrowed $14,500) thn@nce
the cash purchase consideration for the acquist@ifdPeopleCube, (ii) pay outstanding indebtedneskeuthe 15% Notes (including par
interest and subordination consent payments of $184r. Goepel, our Chief Executive Officer, andl$8 Pinnacle Fund, which is control
by David Sandberg, our Chairman) and our bankdineredit, and (iii) pay transaction costs and ewgas of the term loan and the acquis
of PeopleCube.

The loan agreement also provided for a conditimoahmitment of additional single advance senior ssgtierm loans from time
time in an aggregate amount not to exceed $10,080% tused for refinancing certain other indebtesinkmding permitted acquisitions
other growth initiatives, and paying fees and esgsrof the term loans and permitted acquisitions.did not borrow any amounts under
conditional term loan commitment in 2012.

The first amendment in March 2013 required an aultid $2,000 principal payment by October 31, 28d8ch we paid in Ma
2013. In addition, in connection with the first@madment, we paid a $240 loan amendment fee, ofw#B&2 was recorded to interest expt
and $188 was recorded as a prepaid expense trerheizing to interest expense over the term ofibte payable.

In September 2013, we entered into a third amenttoeour loan agreement. Under this amendmentaangiart of the conditior
term loan commitment, we borrowed an additionab®@,in September 2013 and borrowed an addition&08lin December 2013. The tt
amendment increased the amount outstanding to $1.3,4

In connection with the third amendment in Septen#843, we recorded $110 of loan amendment feespaspaid expense and
amortizing this amount to interest expense ovetdha of the note payable.

The senior note payable bears interest at a fipatimual rate equal to LIBOR plus 8.0%, subjeca tolBOR floor of 9.5%, or
minimum of 11.5%. It requires monthly payments mterest only and quarterly principal payments cZ&om October 1, 2012. With t
additional borrowing in September 2013 and begignlanuary 1, 2014, the quarterly principal payméeisame $425 with any remain
principal due on July 1, 2016.



F-19




Table of Content

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth or otherwise noted)

We may prepay all or a portion of the principal ampoutstanding at any time, subject to a premianging from 1% to 5% of tl
principal amount being prepaid depending on if grepayment occurs on or before the first, secondhivd anniversary of the thi
amendment date. The term loan requires annual naydarepayments beginning December 31, 2012 oftantling principal with 75% c
excess cash flow as defined in the loan agreenseich(percentage to be reduced to 50% if we acldesgecified senior debt-18BITDA
ratio) and, at Deerpath’election, with proceeds from certain events,udiclg 100% of the net proceeds of any asset sal@ssauance
equity securities. The senior note payable is sethy a first priority lien on all of our and oursidiaries'assets and pledges of 100% ol
equity interests in Asure’s domestic subsidiaried 85% of the equity interests in Asure’s foreighsdiaries.

The loan agreement contains customary covenanishwiere amended effective September 30, 2013,divag but not limited t
limitations with respect to debt, liens, mergersl acquisitions, sale of assets, loans or advamcesd investments in others, dividend
other distributions, capital expenditures and manant compensation. Deerpath may designate onesexgative to attend all meeting:
our board of directors as a non-voting observer.

We used the net proceeds from the third amendnoepay the two Legiant Acquisition Notes totaling, &I0, as well as the &
related party 15% Notes totaling $800. These losese all due in October 2014. Under the latest atmemt, we also changed cer
financial covenants. Beginning with September 31,3 our Total Debt to EBITDA Ratio may not exceked5 to 1.00 (an increase from
previous requirement of 3.50 to 1.00), with levalspping down thereafter. Our Senior Debt to EBITR#tio may not exceed 3.85 to 1.0
September 30, 2013 (an increase from the previegsirement of 2.50 to 1.00), with levels steppimmyvd thereafter. Our Fixed Cha
Coverage Ratio may not be less than 0.8 to 1.06f &ptember 30, 2013 (a decrease from the prevemsrement of 1.00 to 1.00), w
levels stepping up thereafter.

We were in compliance with the covenant requiremestof December 31, 2013 and expect to be in ¢angdl or be able to obt:
compliance through debt repayments with the aviglabsh on hand or as expected to be generated dpamations over the subseqt
twelve month period.

The loan agreement contains customary events alutleincluding, among others, (i) payment defaufiy covenant defaults, (ii
incorrect representations or warranties, (iv) baptey and insolvency events, (v) certain cross ulefaand crossccelerations, (vi) certe
change of control or change of management everds(wi) certain material adverse events. In somsesathe defaults are subjec
customary notice and grace period provisions.

We made quarterly principal payments of $362 eathhe senior note payable beginning October 1, 2B paid the require
$2,000 principal payment in May 2013.

In March, 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreenvdttt Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as austrative agent, and the
lenders that are party thereto. We used the pdscef the term loan to finance the repaymentlafrabunts outstanding under our loan
agreement with Deerpath. See Note 14- Subsequemt&for further details.

Line of Credit

In September 2011, we entered into a credit agreemith JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. (“Bankpyoviding for a $500 line of cre«
(the “Line of Credit”),which we fully utilized as of December 31, 2011. ékgginally issued, the Line of Credit bore intdrata rate of 1.5'
above the CB Floating Rate and matured on Septeg#he2012. The CB Floating rate is defined as thak® prime rate, as announced fi
time to time, provided that the CB Floating Rateymat be less than the adjusted one month LIBOR fEte aggregate principal amoun
advances outstanding at any one time under the dfiieredit may not exceed 80% of eligible tradecarts and accounts receivable or
maximum principal amount then available, whichagdess.

We repaid the $500 outstanding under the line edlicin full in July 2012. This line expired asDécember 31, 2012. No amount
are outstanding related to the Line of Credit.
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NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment and related depreciableiubegs as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are csatpof the following:

December 31

2013 2012

Software: -5 years $ 4,121 $ 3,86(
Furniture and equipment-5 years 4,371 4,102
Internal support equipment-4 years 69¢€ 69¢
Vehicle: 7 year: 42 42
Capital leases: lease term or life of the a 17¢ 17¢
Leasehold improvements: lease term or life of therovement 2,15¢ 2,15:¢
11,56¢ 11,03«

Less accumulated depreciation (10,337 (9,880
$ 1,23 $ 1,154

We record the amortization of our capital leasedegweciation expense on our Consolidated Staten@#riComprehensive Incol
(Loss). Depreciation and amortization expensedinglao property and equipment were approximateitd%band $255 for 2013 and 20
respectively.

In October 2012, we entered into a Code PurchaddParpetual License Agreement (“License Agreemeniff) FotoPunch, Inc.,
Delaware corporation (“FotoPunchthat owns and develops facial and voice recognifiofiware for tracking employee time and le
management information for use with mobile and ottevices. Under the License Agreement, we acdargiorldwide, perpetual, right
use the code and software in the workforce manageimedware, equipment and software solutions imgusVe have the right to gre
sublicenses to resellers and third parties. Foeraog of two years, FotoPunch has agreed to assist integrating and using the facial
voice recognition software with our solutions.

At the same time, we also entered into a RighteAgrent with FotoPunch under which FotoPunch gramseah option to acquire
or its business and a right of first refusal to chadny third party offer.

NOTE 8 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In May 2013, we sold approximately 662,000 shafeommon stock to various investors, including agrdirectors of the Compa
and other entities affiliated with the directorsagpurchase price of $5.31 per share, for proceetsf fees and expenses, of approximi
$3,433. We sold the shares pursuant to a regmtratatement on Form $and a related prospectus supplement. We usef@®afGhe fund
to make a required principal payment under our lagreement with Deerpath Funding. We used the balafhthe net proceeds for gen
corporate purposes and repayment of additionatandsng debt.

STOCK SPLIT

On March 27, 2012, the Board of Directors declaae8-for2 stock split, payable April 30, 2012 to the ho&lerf record of ot
common stock as of the close of business on A@rikP12. We made cash payments based upon thegjosce of our shares on the rec
date in lieu of the issuance of fractional shar&l prior periods have been adjusted to refleetithpact of the stock split.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

Pursuant to Asurs’stock repurchase plan, we may repurchase upa®@® shares of our common stock. We have repsech:
total of 384,000 shares for approximately $5.0ionllover the life of the plan. Management will ipelically assess repurchasing additic
shares, depending on our cash position, marketitimng] financial covenants and other factors. M/kie program remains in place, we
not repurchase any shares during 2013 or 2012.
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STOCK AND STOCK OPTION PLANS

Asure has one active equity plan, the 2009 Equigy Pthe “2009 Plan”). The 2009 Plan provides fw tssuance of nogualifiec
and incentive stock options to our employees amsuitants. We generally grant stock options witbreise prices greater than or equal tc
fair market value at the time of grant. The opsigenerally vest over three to four years and aeecesable for a period of five to ten ye
beginning with date of grant. Our shareholderpraped an amendment to the 2009 Plan in June 20irctease the number of she
reserved under the plan from 525,000 to 900,000h#e a total of 795,000 options granted antstanding pursuant to the 2009 Plan
December 31, 2013.

We use the Blaclscholes option valuation model to value employeeksawards. We estimate stock price volatility lohspon ou
historical volatility. Estimated option life and rfeiture rate assumptions are derived from histbritata. For stockased compensati
awards with graded vesting, we recognize compeamsatipense using the straight-line amortizatiorhoet

Total compensation expense recognized in the Colasetl Statements of Comprehensive Income (Losstéezk based awards v
$160 and $88 for 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following table summarizes the assumptions teelkvelop their fair value for 2013 and 2012:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Risk-free interest rat 1.71% 0.35(%
Expected volatility 0.6: 0.91
Expected life in year 4.5(C 3.7t

Dividend yield - -

As of December 31, 2013, Asure had reserved slodi@ammon stock for future issuance as follows:

Options outstandin 795,00(
Options available for future grant 105,00(
Shares reserved 900,00(
The following table summarizes activity under dfis during 2013 and 2012.
For 2013 For 2012
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at the beginning of the y 679,000 $ 3.1€ 530,000 $ 2.3t
Grantec 216,00( 5.6€ 260,00( 6.4z
Exercisec (17,000 2.0Z (37,000 2.01
Canceled (83,000 5.82 (74,000 2.4:
Outstanding at the end of the year 795,000 ¢ 3.5¢ 679,000 ¢ 3.1¢
Options exercisable at the end of the year 369,000 ¢ 2.5¢ 242,000 ¢ 2.32
Weighted average fair value of options grantedriythe yea 5.6€ 6.42
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The following table summarizes the outstanding exetcisable options and their exercise prices &eotmber 31, 2013:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
NUMBER
NUMBER WEIGHTED - EXERCISABLE
OUTSTANDING AVERAGE WEIGHTED - AND WEIGHTED -
RANGE OF AT REMAINING AVERAGE VESTED AT AVERAGE
EXERCISE DECEMBER 31, CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE DECEMBER EXERCISE
PRICES 2013 LIFE (YEARS) PRICE 31, 2013 PRICE
$ 1.5C-2.11 32,00( 34C $ 2.01 24,000 $ 1.97
2.35-2.3¢ 467,00( 2.4¢ 2.3¢ 319,00( 2.3¢
2.5i-6.42 296,00( 4.5t 5.7: 26,00( 5.6¢
$ 1.5(-6.42 795,00( 3.2¢ $ 3.5¢ 369,00( $ 2.54

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstag@ind options exercisable is $1,612 and $1,13pendively, at December 31, 20
NOTE 9 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

We sponsor a defined contribution 401(k) plan thatvailable to substantially all employees. Ouaibof Directors may amend
terminate the plan at any time. We provided matgltiontributions to the plan of $147 and $86 in 2848 2012, respectively.

NOTE 10 - REVENUE CONCENTRATION

During 2013 and 2012, there were no customers wigidually represented 10% or more of consolidatenue.
NOTE 11 - NET LOSS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation abiz and diluted net loss per common share for 20t32012. On April 30, 201
we completed a 3-fo?-stock split. All prior periods have been adjustedeflect the impact of the stock split, incluglithe impact on bas

and diluted net loss per share.

We have excluded stock options to acquire 795,0@0649,000 shares for 2013 and 2012, respectifrelyy the computation of tl
dilutive stock options because the effect of inglgdhe stock options would have been anti-dilutive

Year Year
Ended Ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Net Loss (1,662 (3,039
Weightec-average shares of common stock outstan 5,661,001 5,048,001
Basic and diluted net loss per share (0.29) (0.60)
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NOTE 12 - INCOME TAXES

The components of pre-tax loss for the years efgEmmber 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Domestic $ (1,660 $ (1,867)
Foreign 11F (880)
Total $ (1,545 (2,74))

The components of the provision for income taxésbatable to continuing operations for the yeamded December 31, 2013 :
2012 are as follows:

2013 2012

Current:
Federa $ 8 $ -
State 2 10
Foreign 20 79
Total current 26 89
Deferred:
Federa 60 197
State 7 23
Foreign 24 (24)
Total deferred 91 19¢€

$ 117 28E
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effefteemporary differences between the carrying anmwhtassets and liabilities
financial reporting purposes and the amounts usedntome tax purposes. Significant componentshef Companys deferred taxes
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
Current deferred tax asst
Deferred revenu $ 92C $ 85¢
Accrued expenst 104 30
Other 36 31
1,06( 91¢
Valuation allowance (1,007) (1,007%)
Net current deferred tax assets 59 (84)
Noncurrent deferred tax ass
Net operating loss¢ 40,10¢ 40,40(
Research and development credit carryforw 4,39¢ 4,35:
Minimum tax credit carryforwarc 161 161
Fixed assel - 171
Share based compensat 4 6
Other 2 -
44,67( 45,15
Valuation allowance (43,247) (42,955
Net noncurrent deferred tax assets 1,42 2,191
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilitie
Acquired intangible (1,347 (2,089
Goodwill (31¢) (24¢)
Fixed assets (13) -
Total noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (1,807) (2,337%)
Net current deferred tax asset (liability) 59 (84)
Net noncurrent deferred tax liability $ (374 $ (140

At December 31, 2013, we had federal net operatisg carryforwards of approximately $116,480, resteand development cre
carryforwards of approximately $4,868 and alter@tninimum tax credit carryforwards of approximat8ll61. The net operating loss .
research and development credit carryforwards exiflire in varying amounts from 2018 through 2034at utilized. Minimum tax crec
carryforwards carry forward indefinitely.

As a result of our various acquisitions in prioay® we may be subject to a substantial annualdtion in the utilization of the n
operating losses and credit carryforwards due ¢o“thange in ownershipprovisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 &hnue
limitation may result in the expiration of net ogting losses before utilization.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the timing dli@ng the benefits of its favorable tax attritaii@ future tax returns, we he
placed a valuation allowance against our net dedetax assets, exclusive of goodwill. During 20tt® valuation allowance increased
approximately $286 due primarily to operations)uding expiration of tax carryforwards. Approxirebt $8,251 of the valuation allowar
relates to tax benefits for stock option deductimctuded in our net operating loss carryforwardalhwve will allocate, if and when realizi
directly to contributed capital to the extent tleméfits exceed amounts attributable to book dedesoenpensation expense.

We consider undistributed earnings of our foreigsidiaries as permanently reinvested and, acaglsdive have made |
provision for U.S. federal or state income taxegdbn.

F-25




Table of Content

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth or otherwise noted)

Our provision for income taxes attributable to égouning operations differs from the expected taxemge (benefit) amount compu
by applying the statutory federal income tax rdt84%b to income before income taxes as a resutiefollowing:

For 2013 For 2012

Computed at statutory ra $ (52%) $ (939
State taxes, net of federal ben 70 61
Permanent items and ot 3717 24¢
Credit carryforward: (60) 667
Foreign income taxed at different ra 58 354
Tax carryforwards not benefitted 197 (117)

$ 117 ¢ 28¢

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits asJarfuary 1, 2013 was approximately $1,195. The nakation of ou
unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning andoénide year is as follows:

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 1,19¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 62
Additions for tax positions of prior years ©)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 1,252

As of December 31, 2013, we had $1,252 of unre@eghtax benefits, which would affect the effectiag rate if recognized. T
Company'’s assessment of its unrecognized tax lisnefubject to change as a function of the Coryipdmancial statement audit.

Our practice is to recognize interest and/or p@wmltelated to income tax matters in income taxeasp. During 2013, v
recognized $6 of interest and penalties in ourimedax expense.

Asure files tax returns in the U.S. federal jurgsiin and in several state and foreign jurisdictiotVe are no longer subject to L
federal income tax examinations for years endiniprieeJuly 31, 2010 and are no longer subject teesaad local or foreign income 1
examinations by tax authorities for years endintpteeJuly 31, 2009. Asure is not currently undediafor federal, state or any fore
jurisdictions.
NOTE 13 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

Asure’s future minimum lease payments under altajreg and capital leases as of December 31, 2 8safollows:

OPERATING CAPITAL
LEASE LEASE
CALENDAR YEAR ENDING: OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS

2014 65€ 11C
2015 49C 111
2016 94 111
2017 - 67
2018 - --
Thereafter -- --
TOTAL $ 1,24C $ 39¢
Less current portion of obligations (110
Long-term portion of obligations $ 28¢

Total rent expense under all operating leases@@B2nd 2012 were $671 and $589, respectively26b8 and 2012approximatel
45.1% and 51.0%, respectively, of our total oparptease obligations relates to our corporate effécility at Wild Basin in Austin, Texas.
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NOTE 14 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 2014, we reached an agreement to sditildaims and dismiss all pending litigation wRteopleCube Holding B.V. a
Meeting Maker Holding B.V., the sellers of the dapstock of Meeting Maker United States, Inc. (dba PeopleCube) that we psetha
July 2012.

Under the settlement agreement, the parties agoegi@dmiss the litigation and we settled the renmgjrbalance due by us of $2,t
on the Subordinated Notes Payable: PeopleCube sitiqni Note for $1,700. Separately, our insuranagier agreed to pay us $50C
conjunction with the settlement. With the insumproceeds and after offsetting any related liigratosts incurred in 2014, we expec
record a net gain of approximately $1,000 on thtteseent in the first quarter of 2014. We paidsthote in full in 2014. Finally, as part of
original purchase price in the Meeting Maker acitjois, we issued 255,000 shares of our common ssotlect to a lockup expiring as
125,000 shares in June 2013 and 130,000 sharea@i2D14. This settlement also removed the loégufhe remaining 130,000 shares.

In March 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreemeitlh Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as austrative agent, and t
lenders that are party thereto.

The Credit Agreement provides for a term loan i @mount of $15,000. The term loan will mature iarbh 2019. The outstandi
principal amount of the term loan is payable fokkow

$188 on June 30, 2014 and the last day of eachl fimarter thereafter up to March 31, 2C
$281 on June 30, 2016 and the last day of eachl fimarter thereafter up to March 31, 2017;
$375 on June 30, 2017 and the last day of eacl figarter thereafte

In March 2014, we used the proceeds of the term fodinance the repayment of all amounts outstajdinder our loan agreem
with Deerpath Funding, LP (“Deerpathénd the payment of certain fees, cost and expewsaed to the Credit Agreement. The Deer
loan bore interest at a floating annual rate etqualBOR plus 8.0%, subject to a LIBOR floor of %65 o0r a minimum of 11.5%. We expec
incur, in the first quarter of 2014, a otime charge of approximately $1,400 in connectidgthhe refinancing, of which approximately $
is non-cash deferred financing costs.

The Credit Agreement also provides for a revolviogn commitment in the aggregate amount of up t@®B The outstandil
principal amount of the revolving loan is due araygble in March 2019. Additionally, the Credit Agneent provides for a $10,C
uncommitted incremental term loan facility to sugigmermitted acquisitions.

The term loan and revolving loan will bear inter@dtour option, at (i) the greater of 1% or LIBQ#Rys an applicable margin or (i
base rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) aluapplicable margin. We have elected to use therlrate plus the applicable marg
which is 5% for the first six months. Interest iaypble monthly and the margin varies based uporlewarage ratio. See table below
applicable margin rates.

Total Leverage Ratio Base Rate Margin LIBOR Rate Margin
> 2.75:1.C 3.00% 4.00%
< 2.75:1.0 but > 2.25: 2.50% 3.50%
< 2.25:1 2.00% 3.00%

We may voluntarily prepay the principal amount tartsling under the revolving loan at any time withpanalty or premium. W
must pay a premium if we make a voluntary prepayméutstanding principal under the term loan dgrthe first two years following tl
closing date or if we are required to prepay outditeg principal under the Credit Agreement withqaeds resulting from certain asset sali
debt incurrence. The premium is 1% or 0.5% of thiegpal amount being prepaid depending on whethemprepayment occurs on or be
the first anniversary of the closing date or subsed to the first anniversary date through the sécanniversary of the closing date
addition, we are required to repay outstandinggipal on an annual basis with 50% of excess cash, ftertain over advances, asset
proceeds, debt proceeds, and proceeds from judgraedtsettlements.
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Under the Credit Agreement, we are required to taaira fixed charge coverage ratio of not less tha&nto 1.0 beginning with tl
quarter ending June 30, 2014 and each calendateqilaereafter, and a leverage ratio of not grethien 3.5 to 1.0 beginning with the qua
ending June 30, 2014 with the levels stepping dihereafter.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmativel negative covenants, including, among otharstations with respect
debt, liens, fundamental changes, sale of assefsapment of debt, investments, dividends, ands&retions with affiliates.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventstdudt, including, among others, payment defauits/enant defaults, judgme
defaults, bankruptcy and insolvency events, crafaults to certain indebtedness, incorrect reptasens or warranties, and change
control. In some cases, the defaults are subjemigtomary notice and grace period provisions.

In connection with the Credit Agreement, we and wadmlly owned active subsidiaries entered into sakaoty and Securi
Agreement, in March 2014, with Wells Fargo Bank.denthe Guaranty and Security Agreement, we antl edour wholly owned actiy
subsidiaries have guaranteed all obligations utiderCredit Agreement and granted a security intéresubstantially all of our and ¢
subsidiaries’ assets.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyisthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

ASURE SOFTWARE, INC.

March 27, 2014 By /s/ PATRICK GOEPE|

Patrick Goepe
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed byfdhowing persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities and on the ddiedted.

Signature Title Date
/s/ PATRICK GOEPE Chief Executive Officer March 27, 2014
Patrick Goepe (Principal Executive Officer
and Directol
/sl JENNIFER CRO\ Chief Financial Officer March 27, 2014
Jennifer Crow (Principal Financial and Accounting Office
/s/ DAVID SANDBERC Chairman of the Board March 27, 2014

David Sandber

Is/ ADRIAN PERTIERR/ Director March 27, 2014
Adrian Pertierre

/sl J. RANDALL WATERFIELL Director March 27, 2014
J. Randall Waterfield

Is/ MATTHEW BEHREN?1 Director March 27, 2014
Matthew Behren
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Subsidiaries of the Compan

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP
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Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002*
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Incorporated by reference to the Companylar@@erly Report on Form 10-Q for the three montideel September 30, 2011 filed
with the SEC on November 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the Company’suahiReport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecerBheR011 filed with the SEC
on March 30, 201z

Incorporated by reference to the Com(’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on July 6, 201
Incorporated by reference to the Com’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on October 15, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the Companyiai€erly Report on Form 10-Q for the three montideel October 31, 2004 filed with
the SEC on December 15, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the Com’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on December 29, 20
Incorporated by reference to Appendix C to the Camny' s 2012 Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on MayZZR 2.
Incorporated by reference to the Comg's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 27, 20

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 te @ompany’s Registration Statement on Form S-d fitéh the SEC on December 13,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to the Com(’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on October 28, 20(
Incorporated by reference to the Com(’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on March 12, 201

Incorporated by reference to the Compa@usarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three momthded April 30, 2006 filed with the
SEC on June 14, 200

Incorporated by reference to the Comg's 2013 Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on ARG 2013.
Incorporated by reference to the Com’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 28, 20

Incorporated by reference to the Compa@uarterly Report on Form 1Q-for the three months ended March 31, 2010 filéd the
SEC on May 17, 201(

Incorporated by reference to the Company’auah Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer@be2012 filed with the SEC
on April 1, 2013

Incorporated by reference to the Comy’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on June 5, 201
Incorporated by reference to the Comg’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on August 7, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the Comg’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on October 2, 20

Incorporated by reference to the Com’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on March 25, 20:
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiary Location
Compression Labs, In Delaware
Forgent Networks Canada, Ir Canade
iSarla Software Solutions Private Limit India
VTEL Australia, PTY LTD Australia
VTEL Germany, Gmb}t Germany
ADI Software, LLC Delaware
Asure Legiant, LLC Delaware
Meeting Makel- United States, Inc Delaware

Meeting Maker LTC
Business Solve LTI

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference anftillowing registration statements, and in theted prospectuses thereto
Asure Software, Inc. (Form S-3 Nos. 333-185488 288-182828 and Form S-8 Nos. 333-77733, 333-44333,48885, 333-28499, 333-

64212, and 333:10239) of our report dated March 27, 2014, withpeet to the consolidated financial statements @fré Software, In
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for thear ended December 31, 2013.

/sl _Ernst & Young LLP

Austin, Texas
March 27, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Patrick Goepel, certify that:

1. | have reviewed the Annual Report on FormKL@f the Company for the calendar year ended Deeendi, 2013 (th
“RepOf”);

2. Based on my knowledge, the Report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omistate a material fa
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteo€ircumstances under which such statements mead®, not misleadir
with respect to the periods covered by this Rej

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in the Retpdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Company aaraf,for, the periods presen
in the Report

4, The Company’ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewid procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchani
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Company and we hay

(8) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and proceduré® tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmégion relating to the Company, including its cdidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withese entities, particularly during the period ihiet the Report i
being preparec

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigorting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenatsurance regarding the reliability of finanggporting and th
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Compardisclosure controls and procedures and presentede Report ou
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
Report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in the Report any change in then@any’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
Companys most recent calendar year ended December 31, tBaiBas materially affected, or is reasonablgljiko
materially affect, the Compa’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Company other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbndwver
financial reporting, to the Compa’s auditors and to the Audit Committee of the BazfrBirectors:

(@  All significant deficiencies or material weakness®she design or operation of internal control iofieancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect @@mmpanys ability to record, process, summarize and refimaincial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
Compan’s internal control over financial reportir

/s PATRICK GOEPEL
Patrick Goepe
Chief Executive Office
March 27, 201«




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jennifer Crow, certify that:

1. | have reviewed the Annual Report on FormKL@f the Company for the calendar year ended Deeendi, 2013 (th
“RepOf”);

2. Based on my knowledge, the Report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omistate a material fa
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteo€ircumstances under which such statements mead®, not misleadir
with respect to the periods covered by this Rej

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in the Retpdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Company aaraf,for, the periods presen
in the Report

4, The Company’ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewid procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchani
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Company and we hay

(8) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and proceduré® tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmégion relating to the Company, including its cdidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withese entities, particularly during the period ihiet the Report i
being preparec

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigorting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenatsurance regarding the reliability of finanggporting and th
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Compardisclosure controls and procedures and presentede Report ou
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
Report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in the Report any change in then@any’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
Companys most recent calendar year ended December 31, tBaiBas materially affected, or is reasonablgljiko
materially affect, the Compa’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The Company other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbndwver
financial reporting, to the Compa’s auditors and to the Audit Committee of the BazfrBirectors:

(@  All significant deficiencies or material weakness®she design or operation of internal control iofieancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect @@mmpanys ability to record, process, summarize and refimaincial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
Compan’s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ JENNIFER CROW
Jennifer Crow

Chief Financial Office
March 27, 201«




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Patrick Goepel, do hereby certify, pursuant8dULS.C. Section 1350, as adopted by Section 9€edSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Comp#onthe calendar year ended December 31, 2013'Réport”) fully complies

with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operatio
of the Company

/s/ PATRICK GOEPEL
Patrick Goepe
Chief Executive Office
March 27, 201«

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to Asure Soéwac. and will be retained by Asi
Software, Inc. and furnished to the Securities &xdhange Commission or its staff upon request. fdnegoing certification is beir
furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1&8%@is not being filed as part of the Report oa asparate disclosure document.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jennifer Crow, do hereby certify, pursuant toll8.C. Section 1350, as adopted by Section 9@6eoBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compémythe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 (Bepbrt”) fully complies

with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operatio
of the Company

/s/ JENNIFER CROWV
Jennifer Crow

Chief Financial Office
March 27, 201«

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to Asure Soéwac. and will be retained by Asi
Software, Inc. and furnished to the Securities &xdhange Commission or its staff upon request. fdnegoing certification is beir
furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1&8%@is not being filed as part of the Report oa asparate disclosure docum



